
 

  wincoil.gov | Page 1  

 
AGENDA 

 
Winnebago County Courthouse  

400 West State Street, Rockford, IL 61101 
County Board Room, 8th Floor 

 
Thursday, May 25, 2023 

6:00 p.m. 
 

1. Call to Order  ............................................................................... Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 
2. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance…………………………………Board Member Christopher Scrol 
 
3. Agenda Announcements .............................................................. Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 
4. Roll Call ................................................................................................ Clerk Lori Gummow 
 
5. Awards, Presentations, Public Hearings and Public Participation 

A. Awards – None 
B. Presentation – Annual Overview of Revolving Loan Program – Presented by John Phelps 

and Chris Dornbush 
C. Public Hearings – None 
D. Public Participation  

 
6. Approval of Minutes .................................................................... Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 

A. Approval of April 27, 2023 minutes  
B. Layover of May 11, 2023 minutes  

 
7. Consent Agenda………………………………………………….……………………….Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 

A. Raffle Report   
B. Auditor’s Report 

 
8. Appointments (Per County Board rules, Board Chairman appointments require a 30-day 

layover unless there is a suspension of the rule). 
 

9. Reports of Standing Committees ………………………………………………….Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 

A. Finance Committee ....................................................... John Butitta, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 
2. Resolution Authorizing Settlement of a Claim against the County of Winnebago entitled 

David Seitz versus Winnebago County 



wincoil.gov | Page 2  

3. Ordinance for a Budget Amendment to Establish Sheriff E-Citation Fund to be Laid Over 
4. Resolution to Expedite the Payment of Claims for Winnebago County 

 
B. Zoning Committee ........................................................ Jim Webster, Committee Chairman 

Planning and/or Zoning Requests: 
1. Z-03-23 A Map Amendment to Rezone 5.0+- Acres from the AG, Agricultural Priority 

District to the RA, Rural Agricultural Residential District (a Sub-District of the RA 
District) for the property that is commonly known as 6875 Forest Preserve Road, 
Rockton, IL 61072 in Shirland Township, District 2 to be laid over 

2. Resolution Authorizing the DC Estate Winery (8877 State Line Rd, South Beloit, IL) be 
Subject to the Jurisdiction of the City of South Beloit pursuant to a Pre-Annexation 
Agreement 

3. Resolution Directing the Zoning Board of Appeals to Conduct a Public Hearing on 
Certain Unified Development Ordinance Amendments regarding Commercial Wind 
Power Generating Facilities / Wind Farms (aka Commercial Wind Energy Facilities) and 
Solar Farms (aka Commercial Solar Energy Facilities) 

4. A Resolution Supporting Agriculture within the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
5. Resolution Authorizing the Chairman of the County Board to Execute an 

Intergovernmental Cooperation Agreement for Building Inspection by and Between 
the County of Winnebago, Illinois and the Village of Cherry Valley 

6. Committee Report     
 

C. Economic Development Committee .......................... John Sweeney, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 
2. Resolution Granting Authority to the Winnebago County Board Chairman to Execute 

the Documents Necessary to Extend an Existing Loan for $419,387 from the Revolving 
Loan Fund to Experity 
 

D. Operations and Administrative Committee ............ Keith McDonald, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 
2. Resolution to Approve Addition of HVAC Control to Air Handlers and Replacing 

Thermostats for River Bluff Nursing Home Using CIP 2023 Funds 
  

E. Public Works Committee ............................................. Dave Tassoni, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 
2. (23-017) Resolution Amending a Local Agency Resolution of Intent to Retire General 

Obligation Bonds with Motor Fuel Tax Funds for Improvements to County Highways. 
Cost:  $                                                                                                C.B. District: County Wide 

3. (23-018) Resolution Authorizing the Award of Bid for the Annual Concrete Pavement 
Patching (Section: 23-00000-01-GM)  
Cost:  $ 216,403.25     C.B. District: 6, 7 & 11 

4. (23-019) Resolution Authorizing an Agreement with Willett Hofmann & Associates, Inc. 
to Provide Construction Engineering Services for Guilford Road Culvert in Rockford 
Township. (Section 21-09119-00-BR) 
Cost:  $39,311 (Rockford Township)   C.B. District: 16  

5. (23-020) Resolution Authorizing the Award of Bid for the Second 2023 County General 
Letting (Section 23-00000-00-GM) 



wincoil.gov | Page 3  

Cost:  $14,346.40      C.B. District: County Wide 
6. (23-021) Resolution Authorizing Placing Orders for the Purchase of Plow/Dump Truck 

Chassis 
Cost:  $ $866,463.00 (chassis only)   C.B. District: N/A 
(Prices subject to change until build dates are allocated) 

7. (23-022) Resolution Authorizing the Award of Bid for the Spring Creek Road 
Resurfacing Project (Section: 23-09000-02-RS)  
Cost:  $249,890.77 (Rockford Township)                C.B. District:  8 
 

F. Public Safety and Judiciary Committee……………………Brad Lindmark, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 
2. Resolution Authorizing the County Board Chairman to Amend Contract for 

Telecommunication Services for Inmates of the Winnebago County Jail  
3. Resolution Authorizing Execution of a First Amendment to the ARP Subrecipient 

Agreement by and Between the County of Winnebago, Illinois and Marshmallow’s 
Hope 

4. Resolution to Extend Project Safe Neighborhoods Agreement 
 

10. Unfinished Business …………………………….……………………………………..Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 

11. New Business………………………………………………………………………………Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
(Per County Board rules, passage will require a suspension of Board rules). 
 

12. Announcements & Communications ..................................................... Clerk Lori Gummow 
A. Correspondence (see packet)   

 
13.  Adjournment …………………………………………………………………………..….Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 

Next Meeting:  Thursday, June 8, 2023 



 

  
Awards,  

Presentations,  
Public Hearings  

and Public Participation 

 
 



 

 Approval of 
Minutes 

 

























 

CONSENT 
AGENDA 









 

  
Appointments 

 
 



 

 
Reports of 
Standing 

Committees 
 
 
 



 

FINANCE 
COMMITTEE 



 

  Resolu�on Execu�ve Summary 
 
 

Human Resources  |  404 Elm St, Rm 220, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319- 4285 | Fax: (815) 319-4286   

 

 
Prepared By:  Tanya Harris 
Committee:    Finance Committee  
Committee Date: May 18, 2023 
Resolution Title:  Resolution authorizing settlement of a claim against the County of Winnebago 
entitled David Seitz versus Winnebago County 
Board Meeting Date: May 25, 2023 
 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?    Yes                                                    Appropriation Amount: $35,258.76 
If not, explain funding source:                                               Budget Impact: $35,258.76 
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  49400-43535               Tort Judgement Fund/Worker’s Comp Claims  

 
 
Background Information:  Settlement for David Seitz in the amount of $35,258.76.  
 
 
Recommendation:   The Finance Committee, chaired by John Butitta, has reviewed the settlements 
presented to the Board.  The Board is asked to approve this settlement in favor of the Committee’s 
recommendations at its May 18, 2023 meeting. 
 
Contract/Agreement:    
 
Legal Review:  Carol Hartline with Williams McCarthy LLP negotiated these settlements on behalf of 
Winnebago County. 
 
Follow-Up:   N/A 
 
 

http://www.wincoil.us/


Sponsored by: John Butitta, Committee Chairman 
 

 
 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

 
COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
Sponsored by:  John Butitta 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 

2023 CR 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING SETTLEMENT OF A CLAIM 
AGAINST THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO ENTITLED 

DAVID SEITZ VERSUS WINNEBAGO COUNTY  
 

 WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago, Illinois, is involved in having  claims asserted against 
it by David Seitz for injuries allegedly sustained while in the employment of the Sheriff’s 
Department, and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Plaintiff has offered to settle the above claims against the County of 
Winnebago for consideration payable in the amount of $35,258.76 for the settlement  funding 
for his Workers Compensation case; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, counsel for the County of Winnebago recommends that it is in the best 
interest of the County of Winnebago to settle the above referenced claims upon the terms of the 
proposed settlement. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois that it does hereby authorize settlement of the claim entitled David Seitz versus County 
of Winnebago for injuries allegedly sustained by David Seitz while in the employment of the 
Sheriff’s Department by payment of the amount of $35,258.76 for the settlement for permanent 
disability for a Workers Compensation case. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution for David Seitz in the amount of 
$35,258.76 shall be in full force and effect immediately upon it adoption. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to 
prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the County Auditor, Director of 
Purchasing, Human Resources Director, and Williams & McCarthy. 
 

 
 
 
 



2 
 

Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 

JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 
 

                                                        JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN                                           JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN 

  JEAN CROSBY 
 

                                                                                                      JEAN CROSBY 
 

  JOE HOFFMAN 
 

                                                                                JOE HOFFMAN 
 

 
KEITH MCDONALD  KEITH MCDONALD 

JOHN F. SWEENEY  JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

                                                                    MICHAEL THOMPSON 
   

 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2023. 

 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 
 



 

  

 
 
Prepared By:   Tom Lawson, Tami Goral, and Molly Terrinoni 

Committee:   Finance Committee 

Committee Date:    May 18, 2023 

Ordinance Title:              Ordinance for a Budget Amendment to establish Sheriff E-Citation Fund 
County Code:    

Board Meeting Date:     May 25, 2023  

Budget Information: 
Was item budgeted?  No                                                                                Appropriation Amount:   $4,000 

If not, explain funding source:  Transfer from E-Citation Fund 0156 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  44800 / 42117   Non-Capital Computer Equipment   

FY2023 Budget Impact: $4,000 
 
Background Information:  In FY2019, the Circuit Clerk established the e-citation fund to account for fees 
to be used by the Sheriff for restricted purposes.  Recently it came to our attention that the portion of 
fees for the Sheriff were commingled with the fees collected for the Circuit Clerk.  The Circuit Clerk's 
office requested a new fund be established and that the fees collected for the Sheriff since the inception 
of this fee be transferred to the new fund.  The Sheriff Department needs new printers for the e-citation 
program which will be paid for from this new fund.   
 
Recommendation:    Approved by the Circuit Clerk’s Office 
        
Contract/Agreement:   Not applicable 
 
Legal Review:   Not applicable 
 
Follow-Up:    

Ordinance Executive Summary 
 



1 
 

2023 Fiscal Year Finance: May 18, 2023 
 Lay Over: May 25, 2023 
Sponsored by:  Final Vote: June 8, 2023 
John Butitta, Finance Committee Chairman   
 
 
 

  

 
2023 CO 

 
TO:  THE HONORABLE BOARD MEMBERS OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
         The Winnebago County Finance Committee presents the following Ordinance amending the 
Annual Appropriation Ordinance for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2023 and recommends 
its adoption. 

Ordinance for a Budget Amendment to establish Sheriff E-Citation Fund 
 

WHEREAS, The Sheriff’s Office and Circuit Clerk request a Sheriff E-Citation Fund be 
established, and that the fees collected for the Sheriff since the inception of this fee (commingled 
with Circuit Clerk’s fees) be transferred to the new fund.  The Sheriff Department is in need of 
new printers for the e-citation program, 
 
             WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Board adopted the “Annual Budget and Appropriation 
Ordinance” for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2023 at its September 29, 2022 meeting; 
and,  
     
 WHEREAS, 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), states, “After the adoption of the county budget, no 
further appropriations shall be made at any other time during such fiscal year, except as provided 
in this Act.  Appropriations in excess of those authorized by the budget in order to meet an 
immediate emergency may be made at any meeting of the board by a two-thirds vote of all the 
members constituting such board, the vote to be taken by ayes and nays and entered on the 
record of the meeting.” 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that the County Board deems that pursuant to 
provisions as set forth in 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), certain conditions have occurred in connection 
with the operations of the County which are deemed to be immediate emergencies; therefore, 
the increases detailed per the attached Request for Budget Amendment are hereby authorized 
for Amendment #23-025 Sheriff E-Citation Fund 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



2 
 

Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 

 
AGREE  DISAGREE 

JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIR 
 

                                                      JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIR 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIR                                           JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIR 

  JEAN CROSBY 
 

                                                                                                      JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOE HOFFMAN  JOE HOFFMAN 

  KEITH MCDONALD 
 

                                                                         KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 
JOHN F. SWEENEY 

 

JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

                                                                    MICHAEL THOMPSON 
   

 
The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2023. 

 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 
 



5/11/2023

Circuit Clerk / Sheriff
0148 Sheriff E-Citation Fund

Department Org 
Number

Object 
(Account) 
Number

Project 
Number Object (Account) Description

Adopted 
Budget

Amendments 
Previously 
Approved

Revised 
Approved 

Budget
Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised 
Budget after 

Approved 
Budget 

Amendment
Expenditures

44800 42117 Non-Capital Computer Equip $0 $0 $0 $4,000 $4,000
45600 49110 Transfer to Other Funds $0 $0 $0 $13,466 $13,466

Revenue
44800 39110 Transfer from Other Funds $0 $0 $0 ($13,466) ($13,466)

$4,000
Reason budget amendment is required:

$4,000

Revenue Source:
Sheriff E-Citation Fund balance

2023
WINNEBAGO COUNTY

FINANCE  COMMITTEE
REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT

Tom Lawson, Tami Goral, Molly 
Terrinoni

AMENDMENT NO:

SUBMITTED BY:

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

None

DATE SUBMITTED:

DEPARTMENT:
FUND#:

Potential alternatives to budget amendment:

In FY2019, the Circuit Clerk established the e-citation fund to account for fees to be used by the Sheriff for restricted purposes.  Recently it came to 
our attention that the portion of fees for the Sheriff were commingled with the fees collected for the Circuit Clerk.  The Circuit Clerk's office requested 
a new fund be established and that the fees collected for the Sheriff since the inception of this fee be transferred to the new fund.  The Sheriff 
Department is in need of new printers for the e-citation program.  

23-025

44800 Sheriff E-CitationDEPT. BUDGET NO.

Impact to Fiscal Year 2023 budget:



 
 

   
    Resolution Executive Summary 

 

 
    ResExSummary 20.1 version 

 

 

Prepared By:   David J. Rickert 

Committee:   Finance Committee  

Committee Date:  05-18-2023 

Resolution Title:    Resolution to Expedite the Payment of Claims for Winnebago  
    County  
 
County Code:         N\A 

Board Meeting Date:    5-25-2023 

Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?                   Not Applicable         Appropriation Amount: Not Applicable 
If not, explain funding source:  Not Applicable      
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:             Not Applicable          Budget Impact: Not Applicable 

 
Background 
Information: 

The intent of this resolution is to expedite the payment of claims by 
Winnebago County and will enable the payment of claims when checks 
are prepared. Currently, accounts payable checks are held until the 
following County Board meeting date. This causes a delay in paying 
vendors by seven days. This causes customer service issues and causes 
additional work in reconciling accounts. 

  
Recommendation: Administration supports this resolution 
  
Contract/Agreement: Not Applicable 
  
Legal Review:   States Attorney’s Office did review this proposal 
  
Follow-Up: Not Applicable 

 
         



Sponsored by: John Butitta, Committee Chairman 
 

 
 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

 
COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
Sponsored by:  John Butitta 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 

2023 CR 
 

RESOLUTION TO EXPEDITE THE PAYMENT  
OF CLAIMS FOR WINNEBAGO COUNTY 

 
 WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of Winnebago County to pay claims in an efficient and 

timely manner. 

 

 WHEREAS, Illinois Compiled Statute (55 ILCS 5/1-6006) stipulates that a county board can 

delegate authority for the payment of claims (see attached). 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, Pursuant to (55 ILCS 5/1-6006)(see attached) the county 

board hereby designates The County Auditor and Chief Financial Officer the authority to determine 

whether some or all claims against the county should be allowed or disallowed, if sufficient funds have 

been budgeted and are available in the appropriate county fund.  

 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, The Chief Financial Officer each month shall file a monthly 

report of all claims paid in the prior month to the county chairman and all other members of the 

county board. For each claim paid, the monthly report shall identify the creditor, the department 

or county official which purchased the product or service, the fund from which the payment was 

made, the amount of the payment and the date the check was issued.   

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, The County Board reserves the right to revoke this privilege by 

resolution at a future date. 

 



2 
 

Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 

JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 
 

                                                        JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN                                           JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN 

  JEAN CROSBY 
 

                                                                                                      JEAN CROSBY 
 

  JOE HOFFMAN 
 

                                                                                JOE HOFFMAN 
 

 
KEITH MCDONALD  KEITH MCDONALD 

JOHN F. SWEENEY  JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

                                                                    MICHAEL THOMPSON 
   

 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2023. 

 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 
 



(55 ILCS 5/1-6006) (from Ch. 34, par. 1-6006) 
    Sec. 1-6006. Delegation of authority to determine claims. Under the 
provisions of this Section, the county board may by resolution delegate its 
authority to allow or disallow claims made against the county to the 
individuals herein named. 
    For the purposes of this Section, the term "county officials" is defined 
as members of the county board, designated elected county officers, and 
county officers charged with fiscal management of the county who have been 
duly appointed by county board resolution. 
    The county board may by resolution designate members of a committee of 
the county board, or the County Treasurer and the County Clerk, or if there 
is a County Auditor or duly appointed county officer responsible for the 
fiscal management of the county, then the County Treasurer and the County 
Auditor or duly appointed county officer responsible for the fiscal 
management of the county, to determine whether some or all claims against the 
county should be allowed or disallowed, if sufficient funds have been 
budgeted and are available in the appropriate county fund. Or in the 
alternative, the designated county officials shall request the county board 
by resolution to require the submission of a verified affidavit by claimant 
stating that the several items therein mentioned are just and true, and the 
services charged therein, or articles furnished, as the case may be, were 
rendered or furnished as therein charged, and that the amount claimed is due 
and unpaid after allowing all just credits. When the claim is disallowed, in 
whole or part, by the designated officials, and the nature of the claim is 
not such that the allowance is discretionary, such person may appeal from the 
decision of the authorized county officials to the circuit court of the same 
county, upon filing bond with the clerk of such court within 20 days after 
the rendition of the decision, with such security as shall be approved by 
such clerk in the penal sum of $250, payable to the People of the State of 
Illinois, for the use of such county, conditioned that he will prosecute the 
appeal with effect, and pay all costs that may be assessed. 
    The county board may authorize the designated county officials to make 
cash advances to all county officials and county employees for travel and 
related expenses if sufficient funds have been budgeted and are available in 
the appropriate county fund. 
    If the authority to pay claims submitted against the county is delegated 
as provided in this Section, the County Clerk, or if there is a County 
Auditor or duly appointed county officer responsible for fiscal management of 
the county, then the County Auditor or duly appointed county officer 
responsible for the management of the county, shall file a monthly report of 
all claims paid in the prior month to the chairman and all other members of 
the county board. For each claim paid, the monthly report shall identify the 
creditor, the department or county official which purchased the product or 
service, the fund from which the payment was made, the amount of the payment 
and the date the check was issued. 
    In addition to any other remedies provided by law, the County Board may 
recover any unauthorized payment from the person receiving it and may seek 
the assistance of the State's Attorney in that regard. 
(Source: P.A. 86-962.) 

 

 



 

ZONING 
 COMMITTEE 



Attachment 
 ZONING COMMITTEE  

OF THE COUNTY BOARD AGENDA 
 May 25, 2023  
 

Zoning Committee……….………….......………..……….....…Jim Webster, Committee Chairman 

       PLANNING AND/OR ZONING REQUESTS: 

  TO BE LAID OVER:     

1.  Z-03-23 A MAP AMENDMENT TO REZONE 5.0+- ACRES FROM THE AG, 
AGRICULTURAL PRIORITY DISTRICT TO THE RA, RURAL AGRICULTURAL 
RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT (A SUB-DISTRICT OF THE RA DISTRICT) requested by John 
Mansfield, Project Manager (Applicant), represented by James Hursh, Attorney, for the 
property that is commonly known as 6875 Forest Preserve Road, Rockton, IL 61072 in Shirland 
Township. 

  PIN: Part of 03-18-100-004                                                                                C.B. District 2 
 Lesa Rating: Very High                                        Consistent W/2030 LRMP-Future Map: NO 
 ZBA Recommendation:  MOTION TO APPROVE FAILED (2-3)   

ZC Recommendation:  TBD 
 

TO BE VOTED ON: 
 

2. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE DC ESTATE WINERY (8877 STATE LINE RD, 
SOUTH BELOIT, IL) BE SUBJECT TO THE JURISDICTION OF THE CITY OF SOUTH 
BELOIT PURSUANT TO A PRE-ANNEXATION AGREEMENT  
ZC Recommendation:  TBD 
 

3. RESOLUTION DIRECTING THE ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS TO CONDUCT A 
PUBLIC HEARING ON CERTAIN UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE 
AMENDMENTS REGARDING COMMERCIAL WIND POWER GENERATING 
FACILITIES / WIND FARMS (AKA COMMERCIAL WIND ENERGY FACILITIES) AND 
SOLAR FARMS (AKA COMMERCIAL SOLAR ENERGY FACILITIES) 
ZC Recommendation:  TBD 

 
4. A RESOLUTION SUPPORTING AGRICULTURE WITHIN THE COUNTY OF 

WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
ZC Recommendation:  TBD 

 
5. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD TO 

EXECUTE AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL COOPERATION AGREEMENT FOR 
BUILDING INSPECTION BY AND BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, 
ILLINOIS AND THE VILLAGE OF CHERRY VALLEY 
ZC Recommendation:  TBD 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 

6.  COMMITTEE REPORT (ANNOUNCEMENTS) - for informational purposes only; not 
intended as an official public notice):  

 
• Chairman, Brian Erickson, hereby announces that a Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA) 
 meeting is tentatively scheduled for Wednesday, August 9, 2023, at 5:30 p.m. in 
 Room 303 of the County Administration Building.   
 
• Chairman, Jim Webster, hereby announces that the next Zoning Committee (ZC) meeting is 
 tentatively scheduled for Wednesday, August 23, 2023, at 5:30 p.m. in Room 303 of the 
 County Administration Building.   



















 
Resolution Executive Summary 

   Committee Date: Wednesday, May 24, 2023   
   Committee: Zoning 
   Prepared By: Chris Dornbush 
 

Regional Planning & Economic Development Department  
404 Elm Street, Rm 403, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.gov 

Phone: (815) 319- 4350 | E-mail: permits@rped.wincoil.gov      

 
Document Title:  Resolution Authorizing The Chairman Of The County Board To Execute An 

Intergovernmental Cooperation Agreement For Building Inspection By And 
Between The County Of Winnebago, Illinois And The Village Of Cherry 
Valley 

County Code: Section 55 ILCS 5/1-1063 of the Illinois Counties Code 
 
Board Meeting Date: Thursday, May 25, 2023 
 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted? NA Appropriation Amount:   $0 
If not, explain funding source:    
ORG - OBJ - Project Code: Budget Impact: None - Budgeted 

 
Background Information: 
Winnebago County Building Division (County) and the Village of Cherry Valley (Village) have had 
a positive existing Intergovernmental Cooperation Agreement (IGA) since at least November 29, 
1984 (85-CR-23) for building (construction) services, i.e. building permitting and building 
inspections. This IGA is to update the approximately 40 year old Agreement by better clarifying 
items within the IGA. No major changes are occurring within. The existing and proposed 
agreement will continue to have Winnebago County issue residential and commercial permits (all 
fees are collected and retained by the County) and will inspect residential and commercial 
construction projects in the Village in regards to permits involving the following trades; 
structural, electrical, plumbing, and HVAC. 
 
Recommendation:  
Winnebago County Administration supports the continuation of this Agreement. It has been a 
positive relationship and provides value by the County and the Village having an interest in 
protecting the health, safety, and general welfare to the citizens. 
 
Contract/Agreement: 
Yes, attached. 
 
Legal Review:   
Yes 
 
Follow-Up: 
Updates or a report can be provided to the Zoning Committee and/or the County Board as 
requested or at the end of the fiscal year. 

http://www.wincoil.gov/


Sponsored by: Jim Webster   County Board Meeting: May 25, 2023 
 

RESOLUTION 
OF  

THE COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

SUBMITTED BY: ZONING COMMITTEE 
 

2023 CR ______ 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD TO 
EXECUTE AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL COOPERATION AGREEMENT FOR 

BUILDING INSPECTION BY AND BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, 
ILLINOIS AND THE VILLAGE OF CHERRY VALLEY  

 
WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago, Illinois (hereinafter referred to as the “County”) 

and the Village of Cherry Valley, Illinois, a municipal corporation, (hereinafter referred to as the 
“Village”) are units of local government as defined in Article VII, Section 1 of the Constitution 
of the State of Illinois; and  

 
WHEREAS, the County and Village are empowered, pursuant to the authority granted to 

them by the Intergovernmental Cooperation Act, 5 ILCS 220/1 et seq., to enter into 
intergovernmental agreements as provided in Article VII, Section 10 of the Constitution of the 
State of Illinois; and 
 

WHEREAS, the County is empowered under 55 ILCS 5/1-1063 of the Illinois Counties 
Code and the Village is empowered under  65 ILCS 11-30-4 of the Illinois Municipal Code to 
regulate buildings and the construction of buildings; and 
 

WHEREAS, the County and the Village have partnered since at least November 29, 
1984 for building inspections and wish to continue their partnership; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County and the Village have an interest in protecting the health, safety, 

and general welfare of its citizens through inspection and enforcement of the Village’s Building 
Code in accordance with the intergovernmental cooperation agreement (“Agreement”), attached 
hereto as “Exhibit A” and is incorporated herein; and 
 

WHEREAS, the County’s inspectors are fully trained, qualified, licensed if required by 
the State of Illinois, and have proficient knowledge of the Building Codes adopted by Winnebago 
County; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County and Village have determined that it is in their best interests to 

enter into the Agreement. 
 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois, that the Winnebago County Board Chairman is authorized to execute the 
Intergovernmental Cooperation Agreement for Building Inspection, by and between the County 



of Winnebago, Illinois and the Village of Cherry Valley, in substantially the same form as set 
forth in Exhibit A, attached hereto.  

  
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution shall be in full force and effect 

immediately upon its adoption. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Clerk of the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago is directed to prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the 
Winnebago County Regional Planning and Economic Development Director and the Winnebago 
County Building Official.  
 

Respectfully submitted, 
        Zoning Committee 

 
AGREE  DISAGREE 

   

JIM WEBSTER, CHAIRMAN  JIM WEBSTER, CHAIRMAN 

ANGIE GORAL, VICE CHAIR  ANGIE GORAL, VICE CHAIR 

PAUL ARENA  PAUL ARENA 

AARON BOOKER  AARON BOOKER 

JOHN GUEVARA  JOHN GUEVARA 

TIM NABORS  TIM NABORS 

DAVE TASSONI  DAVE TASSONI 
 



 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of  
 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2023. 
 

 
 

ATTESTED BY: JOSEPH V. CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 

 



1 
 

 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL COOPERATION AGREEMENT  

FOR BUILDING INSPECTION 
 
 THIS AGREEMENT is by and between the County of Winnebago, Illinois, hereinafter referred to 

as the "County", and the Village of Cherry Valley, Illinois, a municipal corporation, hereinafter referred to 

as the “Village.” 

I. PURPOSE AND OBJECTIVES.  The parties desire to enter into an intergovernmental 

cooperation agreement pursuant to the Illinois Intergovernmental Cooperation Act, 5 ILCS 220/1 et seq., 

whereby the County, through its Building Official, will aid in the enforcement of Village ordinances which 

regulate and control building construction.  Such ordinances shall hereinafter be referred to as the “Building 

Code.” 

II. COUNTY RESPONSIBILITIES AND POWERS.   

A. The County agrees to assume the following duties and responsibilities related to the 

Village’s Building Code under this Agreement: 

1. Issue building permits and retain all building permit fees in order to 

compensate the County for costs incurred in the application and inspection process; 

2. Provide qualified inspections applicable to structures undergoing 

construction in the Village at appropriate intervals during construction; 

3. Provide any and all necessary plan reviews prior to issuance of any building 

permits; 

4. Inform contractors, builders, owners, and others performing work not in 

compliance with the Building Code of the proper remedial measures; 

5. Perform final inspections during construction and issue certificates of 

occupancy to qualified dwellings, structures, and/or spaces;  

6. Advise the Village and its officials on matters germane to the Building Code; 



2 
 

7. Provide witnesses and corroborative documentation, when available, in court 

and in administrative hearings or in conjunction with other legal actions involving possible 

Building Code violations, including, but not limited to, demolition suits; 

8. Provide administrative and/or field inspection work as the Village may 

request for any governmentally sponsored rehabilitation program in compliance with 

applicable federal, state or local grant requirements; and 

9. Work with the Village attorney or other Village personnel regarding any and 

all enforcement matters which may arise involving the Building Code. 

B. For additional services not performed on structures for which a valid building permit 

has been issued, the County shall present the Village with an itemized invoice on a quarterly basis, 

calculated for each hour a full-time building inspector expends in the performance of said service 

according to the County’s fee schedule.  The County shall record these times to the nearest 1/4 hour, 

along with the date and the category of service performed.  The County shall notify the Village in 

writing prior to performing any additional service under this section and, if requested, provide an 

estimate of the total cost which would be incurred for said additional services.   

III. VILLAGE RESPONSIBILITIES AND POWERS.  The Village agrees to assume the 

following duties and responsibilities under this Agreement: 

A. Adopt as the Building Code of the Village, the following Codes as adopted by the 

County, including any future amendments or updates: International Building Code, International 

Residential Code, National Electric Code, International Fire Code, International Fuel Gas Code, 

International Mechanical Code, Illinois State Plumbing Code, and the Illinois Energy Conservation 

Code; 

B. Report any variances from the foregoing Codes which may be adopted by the 

Village immediately to the County Building Official;   



3 
 

C. Grant the County Building Official the authority to perform inspections and related 

functions pursuant to Section II of this Agreement within the Village’s jurisdictional boundaries; 

D. Forward all building permit applicants to the County for building permit issuance 

according to the County’s fee schedule; 

E. Provide zoning approval, if necessary, and any and all other required approvals 

unrelated to the Building Code; and 

F. Provide an attorney at the Village’s expense to represent the Village in all legal 

actions taken to enforce the Building Code or defend the Village in a lawsuit.  The Village shall be 

liable for any and all costs and expenses arising out of legal action taken based upon the Building 

Code. 

IV. TERM.  This Agreement shall commence on the ____ day of ______________, 2023, and 

may be terminated by either party for any reason or no reason by giving sixty (60) days’ written notice to 

the other party. Upon such termination, any open existing permits shall not be the responsibility of the 

County to complete the inspections and project nor shall the County be required to prorate the fees collected 

for non-completed/open permits. 

V. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY.  The liability of the County, its officials, employees, and 

agents is limited to the responsibilities and duties described in Section II of this Agreement.  The Village 

shall indemnify and hold harmless the County, its officials, employees and agents against any and all loss, 

damage, liability, judgments, costs and reasonable attorney’s fees arising out of the Village’s acts or 

omissions under this Agreement.  The liability of the Village, its officials, employees and agents is limited 

to the responsibilities and duties described in Section III of this Agreement.   The County shall indemnify 

and hold harmless the Village, its officials, employees and agents against any and all loss, damage, liability, 

judgments, costs and reasonable attorney’s fees arising out of the County’s acts or omissions under this 

Agreement. 



4 
 

VI. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS.  This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the 

benefit of the parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns. 

VII. EXTENT OF AGREEMENT.  This Agreement represents the entire Agreement between 

the County and Village and supersedes all prior negotiations and representations, either written or oral.  

None of the provisions of this Agreement may be waived, changed or modified except by an instrument in 

writing signed by both parties hereto.   

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on the ____ day of 

_______________, 2023. 

THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
      _______________________________________________ 
 Joseph Chiarelli, Chairman of the County Board  

of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Lori Gummow, Clerk of the County 
Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
 
 
 VILLAGE OF CHERRY VALLEY  
                                              
 
 _________________________________                 
 David Schroeder, Village President of the 
 Village of Cherry Valley, Illinois                 
   
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Clerk of the Village of Cherry Valley, Illinois 
 

























 

ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT 

 COMMITTEE 



 
Resolution Executive Summary 

   Committee Date: Monday, May 15, 2023 
   Committee: Economic Development 
   Prepared By: Jas Bilich & Chris Dornbush  

Regional Planning & Economic Development Department  
404 Elm Street, Rm 403, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.gov 

Phone: (815) 319- 4350 | E-mail: permits@rped.wincoil.gov      

 
Document Title:  Resolution Granting Authority To The Winnebago County Board Chairman To 

Execute The Documents Necessary To Extend An Existing Loan For $419,387 
From The Revolving Loan Fund To Experity 

County Code: NA 
 
Board Meeting Date: Thursday, May 25, 2023 
 
Budget Information: 
 
 

Was item budgeted? Yes Appropriation Amount:   $419,387 
If not, explain funding source:    
ORG - OBJ - Project Code:  
Fund available in fund #0307 (Revolving Loan Fund) 

Budget Impact: None - Budgeted 

 
Background Information: 
Rockford Local Development Corporation (RLDC) have demonstrated a positive effect in growing 
the regional economy in partnership through the County’s Revolving Loan Fund Program that 
was established in 2014. Experity (formerly Practice Velocity Holdings, LLC) is a software 
development company who received funding in 2013 to purchase a portion of Machesney Park 
Mall to establish and grow their business. Experity has an excellent repayment record on their 
loan that is maturing. Experity is requesting an extension of their balance of $419,387 loan 
amortized for 7 years at a 6.0% annual interest to assist with the retention of current 680 full-
time equivalent (FTE) positions. This balance amount will have a total cost to the County of 
$616.75 per employee (680). This loan was originally executed prior to the partnership with RLDC, 
and had terms of $700,000 amortized over 10 years at 2% interest rate. 
 
Recommendation:  
Administration supports the recommendation as proposed with the terms stated by RLDC for the 
loan regarding Experity. 
 
Contract/Agreement: 
NA 
 
Legal Review:   
Yes 
 
Follow-Up: 
RLDC & staff normally update the entire Board on an annual basis. 

http://www.wincoil.gov/
mailto:permits@rped.wincoil.gov


Sponsored by: John Sweeney    County Board Meeting May 25, 2023 

RESOLUTION 
OF  

THE COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

SUBMITTED BY: ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE 
 

2023 CR ______ 
 

RESOLUTION GRANTING AUTHORITY TO THE WINNEBAGO COUNTY  
BOARD CHAIRMAN TO EXECUTE THE DOCUMENTS NECESSARY TO EXTEND 

AN EXISTING LOAN FOR $419,387 FROM THE REVOLVING LOAN FUND TO 
EXPERITY 

 
WHEREAS, Experity (formerly Practice Velocity Holdings, LLC), founded by Dr. 

David Stern, is a software development company specializing in proprietary software used in the 
walk-in medical industry; and 
 

WHEREAS, Experity is located in the Village of Machesney Park, Illinois and owned by  
multiple investors GTCR Funds, Stern Funds, Warburg Pincus, and various other investors; and 
 

WHEREAS, Experity has been in business as a software development company since 
2013, and has a great repayment record on Rockford Local Development Corporation (RLDC) 
loans; and 

 
WHEREAS, in March 2013, the County of Winnebago, Illinois (County) approved a 

loan in the amount of seven hundred thousand dollars ($700,000.00) to the former company, 
Practice Velocity Holdings, LLC for the purchase of a portion of the Machesney Park Mall for 
their business; and  
 

WHEREAS, it is estimated that this loan extension will assist in the retention of six 
hundred eighty (680) full-time equivalent (FTE) employees for the business at a projected cost to 
the County of six hundred sixteen dollars and seventy-five cents ($616.75) per employee of the 
requested balance amount; and 
 

WHEREAS, Experity is requesting funds to extend the existing loan that has matured as 
recommended by the staff of RLDC, of four hundred nineteen thousand three hundred eighty-
seven dollars ($419,387.00) at six percent (6%) interest amortized over seven (7) years, from the 
County of Winnebago's Revolving Loan Fund secured by a subordinated mortgage on their 
property at 8777 Velocity Drive, Machesney Park, Illinois and first lien on general business 
assets as well as a personal guarantee from Dr. David Stern.  
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois, that the Winnebago County Board Chairman is hereby authorized to 
execute the loan documents prepared by Rockford Local Development Corporation (RLDC) and 
approved by the Winnebago County State’s Attorney’s Office for the loan of four hundred 
nineteen thousand three hundred eighty-seven dollars ($419,387.00) at six percent (6%) interest 
amortized over seven (7) years, to Experity secured by a subordinated mortgage on their property 



2 

at 8777 Velocity Drive, Machesney Park, Illinois and first lien on general business assets as well 
as a personal guarantee from Dr. David Stern. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be effective on its adoption. 
 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago is directed to prepare and deliver certified copies of this resolution to the Winnebago  
County Regional Planning and Economic Development Director, County Finance Director, 
County Administrator, and the County Auditor. 
 

 
Respectfully submitted, 

        Economic Development Committee 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

JOHN SWEENEY, CHAIRMAN  JOHN SWEENEY, CHAIRMAN 

JEAN CROSBY  JEAN CROSBY 

ANGELA FELLARS  ANGELA FELLARS 

VALERIE HANSERD  VALERIE HANSERD 

BRAD LINDMARK  BRAD LINDMARK 

TIM NABORS  TIM NABORS 

JOHN PENNEY  JOHN PENNEY 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



3 

The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of  
 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2023. 
 
 
ATTESTED BY:  JOSEPH V. CHIARELLI 

CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 

 



 Revolving Loan Fund  
Loan Summary for: 

Experity (Teleradiology Holdings, LLC) fka Practice Velocity Holdings, LLC 

 
Monday, May 15, 2023    [ 1 / 4 ] 

 

Applicant: 
PIN: 

08-30-152-011 
(7.86 Acres) 
342,506 Sq Ft 

 

Experity (Teleradiology Holdings, LLC) fka 

Practice Velocity Holdings, LLC Principal / Officer (%): 

GTCR Funds (53.5%) 
Stern Entities (25.61%) 
Warburg Pincus (10.7%) 
Various (10.19%) 

Location Address: Website:   https://www.experityhealth.com/  

8777 Velocity Dr. County Board District #: 6 

Machesney Park, IL 61115 County Board Member: Keith McDonald 

Jurisdiction: Village of Machesney Park  

Type of Business:  New (Start-up) X Expansion (Existing) 

Industry: Software Development 

 
 

Requested County Revolving Loan Fund: Employees: Current Projected 

Percentage
County: 419,387.00$           7.00% interest 100.00%

5 years
Owner's: -$                        0.00%

Seller's Finance: -$                        0.00%
EDA Recovery Act: -$                        0.00%

-$                        0.00%

Total Financing of 
Project:

419,387.00$           100.00%

Investment(s)

 

Full-Time 
Equivalent (FTE): 

680 0 

 

Part Time: 0 0 

Within the first 2 years of business 
operating, from the opening. 

Total: 680 

***Cost of County funds per projected job created: $616.75 
 

 
 
 

 
Uses of Loan Proceeds: 

 
• To renew and extend the existing loan that has matured.  

 

 
 
 

https://www.experityhealth.com/


 Revolving Loan Fund  
Loan Summary for: 

Experity (Teleradiology Holdings, LLC) fka Practice Velocity Holdings, LLC 

 
Monday, May 15, 2023    [ 2 / 4 ] 

 

Description of Business & Project: 

 
    Experity (Teleradiology Holdings, LLC) fka Practice Velocity Holdings, LLC (formerly Practice Velocity 

Holdings, LLC) is a software development company specializing in proprietary software used in the walk-in 

medical clinic industry. The software was developed and commercialized by Dr. David Stern, the founder of 

Practice Velocity Holdings, LLC. In March 2013, the Country made a $700,000 loan at 2% interest for 10 

years to Practice Velocity Holdings, LLC to induce them to purchase a portion of the Machesney Park Mall 

to establish and grow its business. The purchase and improvement to the property cost $6.2 mil with the 

balance of funding provided by Illinois Bank & Trust. Both the IBT and County loans have impeccable 

repayment records. The County loan has now matured and is now due in full, but Experity has requested the 

Note be renewed and extended to avoid hardship to the business that may imperil the 680 jobs employed by 

Experity. 

    Subsequent to the original County loan, Practice Velocity has recapitalized its business by soliciting 

equity investments from two private equity funds, GTCR and Warburg Pincus which diluted Dr. Stern’s 

ownership interest to 25.61% from 100%. By recapitalizing the business, Dr. Stern was able to accelerate 

the business’ growth and create more than 300 local jobs. The private equity investors invested more than 

$162 mil into the business. Dr. Stern’s ownership interest was also transferred to a family trust that will also 

guarantee the debt.  

    Experity is a financially strong and profitable business. Its reported annual revenues exceed $100 million 

with a net operating margin in 2021 (latest tax return available) of 10.4%. Moreover, Dr. Stern is a high net 

worth individual making for a strong secondary source of loan repayment by virtue of his personal guaranty. 

 

 
 
 

  
RLDC Recommendation: 

Staff recommends a $419,387, term loan to be fully amortized over seven (7) years, at 7.0% for the 
following reasons:  
 

1) Experity employs 680 FTEs which is double the company’s employment and projected growth 
form ten years ago. 
 

2) Experity has made complete and timely loan repayments for the entire ten year term of the 
existing Note. 
 

3) Experity is financially strong and profitable resulting in strong likelihood full repayment of the 
loan will occur. 
 

4) Dr. David Stern is a very strong guarantor for the loan creating an excellent source of secondary 
repayment for the loan.  

 



 Revolving Loan Fund  
Loan Summary for: 

Experity (Teleradiology Holdings, LLC) fka Practice Velocity Holdings, LLC 

 
Monday, May 15, 2023    [ 3 / 4 ] 

 
 
 
 

Other Conditions: 
Dr. David Stern will remain a guarantor of the loan. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Site Property Tax Information: 

2022 Tax Year Information
PIN(s): Acres Tax Pension

08-30-152-011 7.86 6,593,250.00$  206,600.70$      644.04$           178.12$           
-$                  -$                  

7.86 6,593,250.00$  206,600.70$      644.04$           178.12$           

Other Entities 8,409.18$        
North 2nd Machesney Park 197,369.36$   

Winnebago County 822.16$           
TOTAL TAX BILL 206,600.70$   

Fair Market 
Value:

Tax Bill
Winnebago County Portion

822.16$                                         

** This is a designated 
redevelopment area by the Village 

of Machesney Park. **

4.07%

95.53%

0.40% Tax Bill

Other Entities

North 2nd
Machesney
Park
Winnebago
County

 

***The reason why our tax amount is so low on the property tax portion is that this is located in a Tax Increment 
Financing District (North 2nd TIF Machesney Park) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 Revolving Loan Fund  
Loan Summary for: 

Experity (Teleradiology Holdings, LLC) fka Practice Velocity Holdings, LLC 

 
Monday, May 15, 2023    [ 4 / 4 ] 

 

 

Strengths & Weaknesses 
 
 
Strengths 
 
1) This Loan would allow the company to have affordable payments, as opposed to a balloon payment that is 
 
2) The loan allows for an easier payback option, and avoiding a very large balloon payment.  
 
 
Weaknesses 
 
1)   As this is an extension of our portion of the loan it makes the County the sole lender. 

 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Illinois Secretary of State Corporation / LLC Certificate of Good Standing 
2. Site Map of the location 
3. Tax Information 









5/9/23, 8:42 AM Corporation/LLC Search/Certificate of Good Standing

https://apps.ilsos.gov/corporatellc/CorporateLlcController 1/3

Corporation/LLC Search/Certificate of Good Standing

LLC File Detail Report

Entity Information

Agent Information

Office of the Secretary of State

File Number 04092902

Entity Name PRACTICE VELOCITY HOLDINGS, LLC

Status ACTIVE

Principal Office
8777 VELOCITY DR
MACHESNEY PARK, IL 61115

Entity Type
LLC

Type of LLC
Domestic

Organization/Admission Date
Tuesday, 20 November 2012

Jurisdiction
IL

Duration
PERPETUAL



5/9/23, 8:42 AM Corporation/LLC Search/Certificate of Good Standing

https://apps.ilsos.gov/corporatellc/CorporateLlcController 2/3

Annual Report

Managers

Series Name

Name
ILLINOIS CORPORATION SERVICE COMPANY

Address
801 ADLAI STEVENSON DRIVE
SPRINGFIELD , IL 62703

Change Date
Thursday, 18 November 2021

For Year
2022

Filing Date
Thursday, 27 October 2022

Name
Address
EXPERITY, INC.
8777 VELOCITY DR
MACHESNEY PARK, IL 61115

NOT AUTHORIZED TO ESTABLISH SERIES

Return to Search

File Annual Report

Adopting Assumed Name

Articles of Amendment Effecting A Name Change

Change of Registered Agent and/or Registered O�ce

https://apps.ilsos.gov/corporatellc/


5/9/23, 8:42 AM Corporation/LLC Search/Certificate of Good Standing

https://apps.ilsos.gov/corporatellc/CorporateLlcController 3/3

Tue May 09 2023This information was printed from www.ilsos.gov, the official website of the Illinois Secretary of State's Office.

(One Certificate per Transaction)



5/9/23, 10:43 AM Corporation/LLC Search/Certificate of Good Standing

https://apps.ilsos.gov/corporatellc/CorporateLlcController 1/3

Corporation/LLC Search/Certificate of Good Standing

LLC File Detail Report

Entity Information

Agent Information

Office of the Secretary of State

File Number 00891592

Entity Name NMN CONSULTANTS, LLC

Status ACTIVE

Principal Office
8777 VELOCITY DR
MACHESNEY PARK, IL 611150000

Entity Type
LLC

Type of LLC
Domestic

Organization/Admission Date
Wednesday, 2 April 2003

Jurisdiction
IL

Duration

Name



5/9/23, 10:43 AM Corporation/LLC Search/Certificate of Good Standing

https://apps.ilsos.gov/corporatellc/CorporateLlcController 2/3

Annual Report

Managers

Assumed Name

Old LLC Name

ILLINOIS CORPORATION SERVICE COMPANY

Address
801 ADLAI STEVENSON DRIVE
SPRINGFIELD , IL 62703

Change Date
Thursday, 18 November 2021

For Year
2023

Filing Date
Wednesday, 15 March 2023

Name
Address
STERN, DAVID
8777 VELOCITY DRIVE
MACHESNEY PARK, IL 61115

ACTIVE
EXPERITY CONSULTING

ACTIVE
URGENT CARE CONSULTANTS

03/31/2011
NATIONAL MED NETWORK, LLC



5/9/23, 10:43 AM Corporation/LLC Search/Certificate of Good Standing

https://apps.ilsos.gov/corporatellc/CorporateLlcController 3/3

Tue May 09 2023

Series Name

This information was printed from www.ilsos.gov, the official website of the Illinois Secretary of State's Office.

NOT AUTHORIZED TO ESTABLISH SERIES

Return to Search

File Annual Report

Adopting Assumed Name

Articles of Amendment Effecting A Name Change

Change of Registered Agent and/or Registered O�ce

(One Certificate per Transaction)

https://apps.ilsos.gov/corporatellc/






08-30-152-011

8777 VELOCITY DR
PRACTICE VELOCITY HOLDINGS LLC

101806

1

*$RE08301520111$*
Property Code

08-30-152-011

Parcel ID

MACHESNEY PARK IL  61115-

Phone: (_____) ______ - ________

Change of Address Form

New Name / Address

Date: _____/_____/_______

$103,300.3506/02/2023

TOTAL TAX DUE:

- 2022 Parcel ID: 08-30-152-011

  Taxing Body Current TaxCurrent RatePrior TaxPrior Rate

644.040.6559692.630.7054WINNEBAGO COUNTY
178.120.1814194.220.1978- PENSION

94.360.096197.510.0993FOREST PRESERVE
3.140.00324.710.0048- PENSION

99.270.1011100.640.1025HARLEM TOWNSHIP
0.000.00000.000.0000MACHESNEY PARK VILLAGE

583.740.5945410.930.4185NORTH PARK FIRE
156.420.1593169.970.1731FOUR RIVERS SANITATION AUTHO
251.860.2565256.170.2609NORTH SUBURBAN LIBRARY
16.200.016516.500.0168- PENSION

78.550.080079.630.0811GREATER RKFD AIRPORT
12.370.012614.140.0144- PENSION

6,228.786.34366,359.276.4765HARLEM SCHOOL DIST 122
374.200.3811375.480.3824- PENSION

461.590.4701448.140.4564COMMUNITY COLLEGE  511
5.990.00610.000.0000- PENSION

42.710.043543.200.0440HARLEM TWSP ROAD
197,369.360.0000183,550.020.0000NORTH 2ND TIF MACHESNEY PAR

Totals: 9.4339 192,813.16 9.4015 206,600.70

Township Assessor Phone Number: 815-633-9380
$206,600.70

Fair Market Value:

6,593,250

Location of

8777 VELOCITY DR Property:

2

09/08/2023 $103,300.35

Property Code
*$RE08301520112$*

Parcel ID

08-30-152-011

x
Board of Review Equalized Value =
Home Improvement Exemption -
Disabled Vet Adapted Housing Exemption -
Department of Revenue Assessed Value =
State Multiplier for Winn Cnty x
Revised Equalized Value =
Senior Freeze Exemption -
FAF/VAF Exemption -

-
-
-

General Homestead Exemption

2,197,529
0
0

2,197,529
1.0000

2,197,529
0
0
0

Board of Review Assessed Value 2,197,529
Township Equalization factor 1.0000

0Senior Citizen (over 65) Exemption
Disabled Person / Disabled Vet Exemption 0

-Returning Veteran Exemption 0

+
-
=
x
=

Non AD Valorem Tax 0.00
Abatements 0
Calculated Tax $206,600.69
Tax Rate for Tax Code 416 9.4015
Taxable Value 2,197,529

    Formula for Tax Calculation

PRACTICE VELOCITY HOLDINGS LLC
8777 VELOCITY DR
MACHESNEY PARK IL  61115-

8777 VELOCITY DR

MACHESNEY PARK IL  61115-

PRACTICE VELOCITY HOLDINGS LLC

THIS IS THE ONLY NOTICE YOU WILL
RECEIVE FOR BOTH INSTALLMENTS.

WINNEBAGO COUNTY TREASURER AND COLLECTOR Ph. No. (815) 319-4400 2022

MACHESNEY PARK MALL PLAT 2 PT N1/2 SEC 30-45-2 COMM SW 

Reason for Change Signature

 ABBREVIATED LEGAL DESCRIPTION

TIF District

cdornbush
Highlight

cdornbush
Highlight

cdornbush
Highlight

cdornbush
Highlight

cdornbush
Highlight













Winnebago County Revolving Loan Fund (RLF) Program 
Overview 

Wednesday, April 12, 2023 

Rockford Local Development Corporation (RLDC) 
Manages the Revolving Loan Fund Program on behalf of Winnebago County 

• RLDC Agreement approved November 26, 2014 
• Amendment approved January 28, 2016 

John Phelps 
Executive Director of RLDC 
#815-987-8675 

http://rldc.us/index.asp 
120 West State Street, Suite 306 

Rockford, IL  61101 
 

REVOLVING LOAN FUND PROCESS IN A NUTSHELL 
(Assuming approval at each step) 

 

 

• Program is used for Gap Financing, examples of use... 
o Land & Building 
o Equipment & Machinery 
o Working Capital 

 
October 11, 2016 State of Illinois letter relinquishing reporting requirements. 

 

Business 
needs a 

loan 

RLDC 
reviews 

application 

Economic Development 
Committee  

Reviews loan 

County Board 
Reviews loan 

RLDC 
Loan is 

executed 

http://rldc.us/index.asp


Winnebago County Revolving Loan Fund (RLF) Program 
Overview 

Wednesday, April 12, 2023 

Origin of Funding for Revolving Loan Fund Program 

 

 

 

 

• NOT connected with the County’s General Fund, operating costs, etc. 
o It’s a stand-alone fund 

• No liability to Winnebago County 
• Fund generates interest 

o Interest covers management fees 
o Interest balance grows account for further community investment 

Activity Summary 

• Since September 28, 2015 through present (April 1, 2023) 
o 26 loans processed 

 Average number of loans per year 2.89 
o $1,590,500 loans invested into the community 
o Estimated 176.50 Full-Time Equivalent (FTE) jobs created 

• Average loan approximately... 
o Amount $61,200 

 Loan amounts have ranged from $17,500 to $200,000 
o Interest Rate 6.39%  

 Interest rates have ranged from 5.0% to 9.0% 
o Year (term) length 6.73 

 Loan (term) lengths have ranged from 5 to 10 years 
 At times may be amortized out longer, but with balloon payment 

U.S. Department of 
Housing & Urban 

Development  
(HUD) 

State of Illinois 
Department of 

Commerce & Community 
Agency 
 (DCCA) 

State of Illinois 
Department of 

Commerce & Economic 
Opportunity 

 (DCEO) 

Winnebago County 
Economic 

Development 
Committee 

(EDC) 

 
 
 

 
DCCA turned into DCEO 



 

OPERATIONS & 
ADMINISTRATIVE 

 COMMITTEE 



 
 
 

 
Resolution Executive Summary 

For ARPA or CIP Projects 
    
 
Prepared By:  Purchasing Department for Facilities   
Committee Name: Operations and Administrative Committee   
Committee Date: May 18, 2023  
Board Date:  May 25, 2023     
Resolution Title: Resolution to Approve Addition of HVAC Control to Air Handlers and 

Replacing Thermostats for River Bluff Nursing Home Using CIP 2023 
Funds  
 

Budget Information 
Budgeted? YES                Amount Budgeted?  $160,000             
If not, originally budgeted, explain the funding source?   CIP 2023 GENERAL FUND                                       
If ARPA or CIP funded, original Board approved amount?   $160,000                                 
Over or Under approved amount? UNDER         By: $60,959                                             
Reason for ARPA or CIP increase?    
If ARPA funded, was it approved by Baker Tilly?  N/A         
ORG/OBJ/Project Codes: 82200-46320-C2310    Descriptor: HVAC Control 
                                              82200-46320-C2311                         Thermostats 
Budget Impact? $ 99,041 

 

Background Information: River Bluff Nursing Home’s HVAC system is in need of air handler 
controllers and upgrading of the pneumatic room thermostats with electric thermostats. Alpha 
Controls and Services is the authorized dealer for our current Building Maintenance System.  
Facilities Engineer, Shawn Franks, recommends repair/upgrade versus. full system replacement, 
per quote from Alpha Controls and Services (see Resolution Exhibit A), which requires a Sole 
Source Justification Form (see  Resolution Exhibit B). 
 
Recommended By:  Shawn Franks, Facilities Engineer     
 
 
SAO Reviewed:   N/A 
 
Contract/Agreement Information:  N/A  
 
Follow-Up Steps:  The Purchasing Department will issue a County Purchase Order to Alpha 
Controls & Services. 
 



County Board Meeting: May 25, 2023 
 

 
R E S O L U T I O N 

of the 
COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
Sponsored by:   Keith McDonald 
Submitted by:  Operations and Administrative Committee 
 

2023 CR 
RESOLUTION TO APPROVE ADDITION OF HVAC CONTROL TO AIR HANDLERS AND REPLACING THERMOSTATS 

FOR RIVER BLUFF NURSING HOME USING CIP 2023 FUNDS 
 

WHEREAS, the Code of Ordinances for the County of Winnebago, Illinois, provides as in 
Section 2-357 (b) (1), Conditions for use. All procurements whose value equals or exceeds the 
competitive bidding threshold of $25,000.00 shall be awarded by competitive sealed bidding in 
accordance with this section except as otherwise provided in 2-357(c) (Request for Proposals), 2-
357(d) (Professional Services), 2-357(e) (Sole-Source), 2-357(f) (Emergency Procurements), 2-357 
 (g) (Cooperative Joint Purchasing) or as provided by State statute; and, 

 

WHEREAS, River Bluff Nursing Home needs to add HVAC control to air handlers and 
replace multiple pneumatic thermostats with electric; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the Facilities Department received proposal from the County’s current 
Building Maintenance System provider, Alpha Controls and Services; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the Operations and Administrative Committee of the County Board for the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois has reviewed the Proposal received for the aforementioned project 
and recommends awarding this purchase to:  

 

ALPHA CONTROLS & SERVICES 
4104 CHARLES STREET 

ROCKFORD, ILLINOIS 61108 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois, that the Director of Purchasing is authorized to issue a Purchase Order, 
on behalf of the County of Winnebago, to ALPHA CONTROLS & SERVICES, 4104 CHARLES ST, 
ROCKFORD, ILLINOIS 61108. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective 
immediately upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to 
prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Director of Purchasing, Finance 
Director, Facilities Engineer, River Bluff Nursing Home Administrator, County Board Office 
and County Auditor.                  

          



     Respectfully Submitted, 
          OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

VALERIE HANSERD, VICE CHAIR 
 
 

                            VALERIE HANSERD, VICE CHAIR 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

                                                                             PAUL ARENA 
 
 

JOHN BUTITTA 
 

                                                                         JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 

                                                                          JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

JAIME SALGADO       JAIME SALGADO 
 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2023. 

 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIR OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



PROPOSAL 

Proposed By Proposal for Temperature Controls 

Phil Voigt River Bluff Nursing Home AHU-E Controls Replacement 

Director, Engineering Solutions 

M: 815-520-4424 

E: philv@alphaacs.com 

Base Bid 

Proposal#: 

Proposal Date: 

ACS23-4280 

April 18, 2023 

This is an extension of the existing Schneider Electric control system by Alpha Controls & Services 

General Conditions 
• Startup, checkout, Owner training, commissioning, and warranty as specified (1 year standard)

• Provide graphics, trends, and alarms for a browser-based control system that provides remote access to the

building system including the following: Text alarms, historical trend data and click and drag scheduling of

equipment for weekdays, holidays, and special events
• NOTE: Owner to maintain IT system to support browser-based graphics

AHU-E & Reheats Lower-Level Controls 
• Schneider Electric BACnet DDC controller in a pre-wired local control panel
• Furnish and install conduit and cable from local control panel to equipment
• Provide communications cable to local control panel

• Provide 120v power to local control panel
• Single point temperature sensor
• Averaging temperature sensor (Typical of 3)
• Duct mounted relative humidity transmitter (Typical of 2)
• Duct mounted CO2 sensor
• Manual reset low limit thermostat (Typical of 2)
• Relays for addressable smoke detectors (Typical of 2)
• Duct mounted relative humidity switch
• Air flow switch
• Humidifier control signal
• Duct mounted differential pressure transmitter
• Immersion temp sensor (Typical of 6)
• Start/stop relay and current switch (Typical of 7)
• Modulating spring return 24v damper actuator (Typical of 3)
• Modulating globe valve with 24v spring return actuator (Typical of 2)
• Reheat coil unitary control valve (Typical of 10)
• Reheat coil discharge air temperature sensor (Typical of 10}
• Combination room temp & CO2 BACnet MSTP thermostat
• Provide thermostat rough in

• Provide power & communication cable to thermostat

• Mechanical Work

o Install immersion temperature sensor (Typical of 6)

o Mechanical labor to replace 3-way AHU valve

o Mechanical labor to replace angle valve

Corporate HQ: 

4104 Charles Street 

Rockford, IL 61108 

Springfield Office: 

2867 Via Verde 

Springfield, I 62703 

Champaign Office: 

2110 Clearlake Boulevard Suite #101 

Champaign, IL 61822 

Wisconsin Office: 

8845 S. Greenview Drive #2 

Middleton, WI 53562 

Resolution Exhibit A   Page 1 of 3



PROPOSAL 

o Reinsulate control valves as required to match existing (Typical of 2)

o Mechanical labor to replace 3-way unitary valve (Typical of 10}

o Demo existing pneumatic panel & pneumatic tubing to 8' above finished floor

AHU-E Reheats Upper-Level Controls 
• Network controller installed in a field-wired local control panel
• Provide communications cable to local control panel
• Provide 120v power to local control panel
• Combination room temp & CO2 BACnet MSTP thermostat (Typical of 9)
• Provide thermostat rough in (Typical of 9)
• Provide power & communication cable to thermostat (Typical of 9}

Exclusions 
• Fire and/or fire/smoke dampers, life safety products and/or electrical or sheet metal installation labor
• Access doors, patching and/or painting
• Overtime and/or Shift/Premium Time
• Bonding and Permits
• Federal, State and Local Taxes
• Smoke detectors and/or modifications to fire alarm system
• VFD's, starters, and power wiring by others except as specified above
• Draining, cleaning, and/or flushing piping systems

• Emergency Power

• Any/all liquidated damages

• BIM Modeling
• Asbestos testing/mitigation not included. Owner to provide ACM testing & mitigation of existing system if required
• Control/replacement of any equipment not specified above not included in pricing
• This proposal is valid for 30 days and assumes completion in 2023

Base Bid: $99,041 
(Sales tax not included.) 

The standard terms and conditions of sale are attached and are a part hereof: 

Proposed By 

Name Phil Voigt 

Title Director, Engineering Solutions 

Company Alpha Controls & Services, LLC. 

Date 4/18/2023 

Accepted By 

Name 

Title 

Company 

Date 

NOTWITHSTANDING ANY INCONSISTENT OR ADDITIONAL TERMS THAT MAY BE EMBODIED IN YOUR PURCHASE ORDER, SELLER WILL ACCEPT YOUR ORDER SUBJECT ONLY TO THE TERMS OF THE WRITTEN CONTRACT BETWEEN 

US UNDER WHICH YOUR ORDER IS PLACED. IF NO SUCH CONTRACT EXISTS SELLER WILL ACCEPT YOUR ORDER ONLY ON THE EXPRESS CONDITION THAT YOU ASSENT TO THETERMS AND CONDITIONS CONTAINED ABOVE AND 

ON THE REVERS SIDE HEREOF; AND YOUR ACCEPTANCE AND RECEIPT OF THE GOODS SHIPPED HEREUNDER SHALL CONSTITUTE ASSENT TO SUCH TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

Corporate HQ: 

4104 Charles Street 

Rockford, IL 61108 

Springfield Office: 

2867 Via Verde 

Springfield, I 62703 

Champaign Office: 

2110 Clearlake Boulevard Suite #101 

Champaign, IL 61822 

Wisconsin Office: 

8845 S. Greenview Drive #2 

Middleton, WI 53562 

Resolution Exhibit A   Page 2 of 3



PROPOSAL 

All goods, services, and Firmware furnished by Alpha Controls & Services ("Supplier") are governed by these standard terms and conditions, and every agreement or other 
undertaking by Supplier is expressly conditioned on assent hereto by the buyer, and any end user with whom Supplier undertakes to deal, of Supplier's goods, services, and Firmware 
("Customer"). These standard terms and conditions supersede all inconsistent printed terms submitted by Customer prior to Supplier's order acknowledgment. They may be varied 
only by a typed or legibly handwritten notation on the face of Supplier's quotation or order acknowledgment, Customer's purchase order form, or similar documents. Product and 
sales policy sheets and the like published from time to time by Supplier shall supplement but not supersede these standard terms and conditions. SUPPLIER IS NOT BOUND TO 
FURNISH ITS GOODS, SERVICES OR FIRMWARE EXCEPT IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE TERMS OF ITS ORDER ACKNOWLEDGMENT, FIRM QUOTATION, OR OTHER SIMILAR DOCUMENT 

ISSUED OVER THE SIGNATURE OF AN AUTHORIZED EMPLOYEE OF SUPPLIER. SUPPLIER'S REPRESENTATIVES, DISTRIBUTORS, DEALERS AND OTHER NON-EMPLOYEES HAVE NO 
AUTHORITY TO BIND SUPPLIER. 

1. Firmware. The terms "goods" as used herein shall include Firmware which shall mean the set of instructions, consisting of symbolic language, processes, logic, routines, and 
programmed information in the form of firm or soft media relating to any of the goods and all revisions and modifications thereof. 

2. Price/Delivery Terms. Unless otherwise provided on Supplier's order acknowledgment, price and delivery terms are FOB Supplier's plant and do not include sales, use, or other 
taxes. Supplier may, at its option, make partial shipments and invoice for same. 

3. Payment/Credit/Security. Payment terms for buyers with a credit standing deemed adequate by Supplier are net 30 days from date of invoice. Supplier shall be entitled to charge 
interest thereafter at a rate permitted by law, but in no event to exceed 1½% per month. Whenever Supplier in good faith deems itself insecure, Supplier may cancel any outstanding 
contracts with Customer, revoke its extension of credit to Customer, reduce any unpaid debt by enforcing its security interest, created hereby, in all goods (and proceeds therefrom) 
furnished by Supplier to Customer, and take any other steps necessary or desirable to secure Supplier with respect to Customer's payment for goods and services furnished or to be 
furnished by Supplier. 

In the event Customer for any reason withholds payment of any amount due Supplier, Supplier may declare itself insecure and suspend further shipment to Customer until Customer 
places the withheld amount in escrow and gives adequate security for further shipment or until Customer satisfies Supplier that Customer was entitled to withhold such amount 
Supplier shall be entitled to recover from Customer all costs, including reasonable attorney's fees, incurred by Supplier in connection with the collection of any amount due Supplier. 

4. Cancellation by Customer. 
(a), Except as provided in sub-paragraph (b) below, Customer's wrongful non-acceptance or repudiation of a contract to purchase Supplier's goods or services shall entitle Supplier to 
recover the price or, where an action for the price is not permitted by law, damages, as provided by law, including Supplier's lost profits. In this connection all goods purchased and 
all services furnished by Supplier in complete or partial fulfillment of a special order from Customer shall be deemed identified to the contract between Supplier and Customer. 

(b). Customer's wrongful non-acceptance or repudiation of a contract to purchase from Supplier goods which Supplier generally carries in inventory as stock items (or which are 
otherwise readily resalable by Supplier at a reasonable price) shall entitle Supplier to recover damages, as provided by law, including Supplier's lost profits. 

S. Warranty. Supplier warrants that all new and unused goods furnished by Supplier are free from defect in workmanship and material as of the time and place of delivery by 
Supplier. Except for goods and services furnished by Supplier through its employees arising out of orders solicited by Supplier's Representatives and duly accepted by Supplier, 
Supplier does not warrant, and shall not be liable for, the quality of any goods or services furnished or to be furnished by representatives, distributors, dealers or other non
employees of Supplier. 

As a matter of general warranty policy, Supplier honors an original buyer's warranty claim in the event of failure, within 12 months from the day of delivery by Supplier to the site for 
Alpha Controls & Services equipment and for Building Management Systems goods, which have been installed and operated under normal conditions and in accordance with 
generally accepted industry practices. This general warranty policy may be expanded or limited for particular categories of products or customers by information sheets published by 
Supplier from time to time: 

The express warranties provided above are in lieu of all other warranties, express or implied. IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR PARTICULAR PURPOSES 
ARE EXCLUDED WITH RESPECT TO ANY AND ALL GOODS AND SERVICES FURNISHED BY SUPPLIER. 

In case of Supplier's breach of warranty or any other duty with respect to the quality of any goods, the sole and exclusive remedies therefore shall be, at Supplier's option, (1) repair, 

(2) replacement, or (3) payment of or credit for the purchase price (less reasonable depreciation based upon actual use) upon return of the non-conforming goods or parts. 

Return authorization must be obtained from Supplier prior to the return of any defective material. All unauthorized returns will be sent back, freight collect, to the Customer. All 

returns must be made with transportation prepaid by the Customer. Supplier's examination of the units must disclose to its satisfaction that defects exist and have not been caused 
by misuse, neglect, improper installation, repair, alteration or accident before replacement is made or credit issued. 

6. Force Majeure. Supplier and Customer assume the non-occurrence of the following contingencies which, without limitation, might render performance by Supplier impractical: 
strike, riots, fires, war, late or non-delivery by suppliers to Supplier, and all other contingencies beyond the reasonable control of supplier. 

7. No Consequential Damages. Under no circumstances shall Supplier be liable to any person (including distributor) for loss of use, income, or profit or for incidental, special or 
consequential or other similar damages, arising, directly or indirectly out of or occasioned by the sale, operation, use, installation, repair or replacement of the goods or services, 
whether such damages are based on a claim of breach of express or implied warranties (including merchantability or fitness for a particular purpose), tortious conduit (including 
negligence and strict liability) or any other cause of action, except only in the case of personal injury where applicable law requires such liability. 

8. Governing Law. The law of the State of Illinois shall govern all transactions to which these standard terms and conditions apply. 

9. Prices in this quotation remain in effect for 30 days from date of issue. 

Corporate HQ: 

4104 Charles Street 

Rockford, IL 61108 

Springfield Office: 

2867 Via Verde 

Springfield, I 62703 

Champaign Office: 

2110 Clearlake Boulevard Suite #101 

Champaign, IL 61822 

Wisconsin Office: 

8845 S. Greenview Drive #2 

Middleton, WI 53562 

Resolution Exhibit A   Page 3 of 3



SOLE SOURCE JUSTIFICATION FORM 

�C TO MU IS REOUISI ONi 

ORG-OBJ-PROJECT# REQUESTING DEPARTMENT Maintenance 

!MANUFACTURER !Alpha !PRODUCT l x lsrnv1cE

DESCRIBE ITEM OR SERVICE BEING JUSTIFIED AND ITS FUNCTION: 

Upgrading Controls that are obsolete and adding Electronic thermostats to RBNH 

THIS IS A SOLE SOURCE PURCHASE BECAUSE VENDOR IS: 
Sole provider of a licensed or patented good or service 0 

0 Sole provider of items that are compatible with existing equipment, inventory, systems, programs or services 
Sole provider of factory-authorized warranty service 
Sole authorized distributor - manufacturer has established territories (e.g. Caterpillar parts) 

□ 
□ 
□ 
□ 
□ 

The manufacturer (detail below or use attachment regarding why only this manufacturer's product can be used) 
The software manufacturer (and sole maintenance/update provider) 
Other - used equipment, distance for repair, trial test, over the counter resale (detail below or include an attachment) 

REQUESTED SOURCE Alpha Controls CONTACT Phil Voigt 
EMAIL or PHONE philv@alphaacs.com WEBSITE 

WHAT NECESSARY AND UNIQUE FEATURES DOES THIS PRODUCT OR SERVICE PROVIDE WHICH ARE NOT OFFERED 
FROM OTHER VENDORS? (Please be specific) 

Alpha Controls is the existing Company for our BMS (Building Management System). We currently have these 

controls in 13 buildings. We would need to gout for bid to replace entire BMS. 

WHAT STEPS WERE TAKEN TO VERIFY THESE U N  I Q  U E FEATURES ARE NOT AVAILABLE ELSEWHERE? WERE 
OTHER BRANDS and/or MANUFACTURERS EXAMINED or CONSIDERED? (Please list below) 

DEPARTMENTAPPRO

� 

J?a��EVIEWED DATE 

Purchasing Form: JSS22v5 

Resolution Exhibit B



 

PUBLIC WORKS 
 COMMITTEE 















































































































































































































































 

Public Safety & 
Judiciary 

Committee 



 
 

   
    Resolution Executive Summary 

 

   

 
Prepared By:   Purchasing on behalf of the WCSO  
Committee:    Public Safety and Judiciary Committee 
Committee Date:   May 17, 2023 
Resolution Title:  Resolution Authorizing the County Board Chairman to Amend Contract for 

Telecommunication Services for Inmates of the Winnebago County Jail   
Board Meeting Date:  May 25, 2023 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?             N/A                                        Appropriation Amount:    
If not, explain funding source:   Revenue generating contract 
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:              Inmate Commissary Account              Budget Impact:   N/A 

 

Background Information:   The Purchasing Department sent Request for Proposals for Jail 
Telecommunication Services with Global Tel*Link Corporation (GTL) being awarded the multi-
year, commission generating contract. The contract terms allowed for amendments or 
adjustments of services, as needed, when the conditions are agreed upon by both the County 
and GTL.  
 

Amendment #5 addresses the following: 
 

1. Section 3. Term is hereby modified as follows: a. The term of the Agreement is hereby 
extended for one (1) year from March 30, 2024, to March 30, 2025. This Agreement shall not be 
further renewed.  
 

2. As soon as reasonably practicable from the Effective Date of this Amendment, Company shall 
implement mail scanning services.  
 

3. Service Schedule - Enhanced Services – IP-Enabled Tablets, Section 7, Enhanced Services 
and Accessories, is hereby modified to add the following: a. (j) Mail scanning solution. There is 
no charge to the Premises Provider for mail scanning services.  
 

4. Service Schedule - Enhanced Services – IP-Enabled Tablets, Section 7, Enhanced Services 
and Accessories (c) Video Visitation Services, is hereby deleted in entirety and replaced with 
the following: a. (c) Video Visitation Services: 15 minutes free of local visitation per week. $0.25 
per minutes after 15 free minutes per week of local visitation has been exhausted. Subject to 
Illinois Department of Corrections Jail Standards.  
 

Recommendation: Captain Engler recommends approval of GTL’s Amendment 5. 
 

Contract/Agreement:  Amendment 5 to the GTL Master Services Agreement has been 
reviewed by the SAO and all recommendations were incorporated. 
 

Follow-Up:  Purchasing Department will route GTL Amendment 5 for signatures. 
         



County Board:  May 25, 2023 
 
 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

Sponsored by:   Brad Lindmark, Chairman 
Submitted by:   Public Safety and Judiciary Committee  
   

2023 CR 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY BOARD CHAIRMAN TO AMEND CONTRACT FOR 
TELECOMMUNICATION SERVICES FOR INMATES OF THE WINNEBAGO COUNTY JAIL  

 
WHEREAS, since 2018, Global Tel*Link Corporation (GTL) has provided, under contract 

with the County, telecommunication services to the inmates of the Winnebago County Jail; 
and, 

WHEREAS, the County and GTL have agreed to amend the Telecommunication Services 
contract agreement with the County Jail;  and,  

WHEREAS, the Public Safety and Judiciary Committee has determined that the account 
for the aforementioned services shall be as follows: 

INMATE COMMISSARY ACCOUNT 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois, that the County Board Chairman is hereby authorized and directed to, 
on behalf of the County of Winnebago, execute agreement Amendment 5 with Global Tel*Link 
Corporation. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that an y  agreemen t  entered into, pursuant to the 
authority granted in this Resolution, shall contain substantially the same terms as those 
contained in the Amendment which is attached hereto as "Resolution Exhibit A". 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized and 
directed to prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Captain of Corrections, 
Director of Purchasing, Finance Director, County Board Office and County Auditor. 



Respectfully submitted, 
PUBLIC SAFETY AND JUDICIARY COMMITTEE 

 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 

  

BRAD LINDMARK, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 BRAD LINDMARK, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

AARON BOOKER 
 
 

 AARON BOOKER 
 

KEVIN MCCARTHY  KEVIN MCCARTHY 
 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

                                                                          JEAN CROSBY 
 

 
CHRIS SCROL 
 
 

 CHRIS SCROL 
 

ANGIE GORAL 
 
 

 ANGIE GORAL 
 

TIM NABORS 
 
 

 TIM NABORS 
 

The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2023. 

 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 
 

 



1 

CONFIDENTIAL 

AMENDMENT # 05 TO MASTER SERVICES AGREEMENT 

This Amendment # 5 (“Amendment”) takes effect as of the date signed by all parties listed in this 

preamble (“Effective Date”), and amends and revises that certain Master Services Agreement, dated 

August 14, 2017, as amended from time to time (the “Agreement”), by and between Global Tel*Link 
Corporation d/b/a ViaPath Technologies with an address of 3120 Fairview Park Drive, Suite 300, Falls 

Church, Virginia 22042 (the “Company”), and the County of Winnebago, and the Winnebago County 

Sheriff’s Office, with an address of 650 W. State Street, Rockford, Illinois 61102 (the “Premises 
Provider”) (Company and Premises Provider collectively, the “Parties” and each a “Party”).  All 

capitalized terms not defined herein shall have the definitions set forth in the Agreement. 

WHEREAS, the Parties have agreed to amend the Agreement, as further described below; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises and covenants set forth in this 

Amendment, and for good and valuable consideration, the sufficiency of which is acknowledged by the 
Parties’ signatures, the Parties agree as follows: 

1. Section 3. Term is hereby modified as follows:
a. The term of the Agreement is hereby extended for one (1) year from March 30, 2024, to

March 30, 2025. This Agreement shall not be further renewed.

2. As soon as reasonably practicable from the Effective Date of this Amendment, Company shall

implement the following mail scanning services.

a. Service Schedule - Enhanced Services – IP-Enabled Tablets, Section 2, Definitions,

“Enhanced Services” is hereby modified to add, “mail scanning services” to the
definition.

b. Service Schedule - Enhanced Services – IP-Enabled Tablets, Section 6 Tablets, a.

Enhanced Services is modified as follows: the following paragraph v is added:

v. Mail Scanning Solution: At the Premise Provider’s request, the Company agrees

to scan inmate mail into electronic format that the facility can then deliver

electronically to the original inmate recipient. The inmates’ mail will be directed
to a mail scanning location designated by Company, where such inmates’ mail will

be opened, scanned, and delivered electronically to the Premises Provider and/or

Company, for delivery via the Tablets to the inmates.  The Premises Provider will
provide instructions to those desiring to send mail to inmates, on the address to

send the mail, and other information for delivery. The Parties agree that any rule,

regulation, statue, or court order, or other change mandated by any federal, state,
or local authority which may interfere with, materially alter, or adversely affect

Company’s rights or obligations related to Mail Scanning under this Agreement,

shall require the Parties to enter into good faith negotiations to renegotiate the

terms of this Mail Scanning service. Any additional costs to Company resulting
from changes mandated by federal, state, or local authorities shall be reimbursed

to Company by Premise Provider until such time that a new agreement on the terms

of the Mail Scanning service is reached. Should the parties fail to agree on new
terms for the Mail Scanning service, the Company shall be released from any and

all further obligation to the Premises Provider to provide the Mail Scanning

service. Any changes to the Mail Scanning service do not affect the Parties’ rights
and obligations under the rest of this Agreement.

RESOLUTION EXHIBIT A



 

2 

                                                                               CONFIDENTIAL 

c. Service Schedule - Enhanced Services – IP-Enabled Tablets, Section 6, Tablets, c. 

Premises Provider Obligations, is hereby modified to add the following requirement: 

v. (14) prescribe the location for friends and family to send US mail to inmates to the 

designated mail scanning facility and exclude any legal mail from being sent, and 

to provide the requested authorization to Company for opening and scanning of 
the mail (excluding legal mail). 

 

3. Service Schedule - Enhanced Services – IP-Enabled Tablets, Section 7, Enhanced Services 

and Accessories, is hereby modified to add the following:  

a. (j) Mail scanning solution.  There is no charge to the Premises Provider for mail scanning 

services.   
 

4. Service Schedule - Enhanced Services – IP-Enabled Tablets, Section 7, Enhanced Services 

and Accessories (c) Video Visitation Services, is hereby deleted in entirety and replaced with the 

following: 
a. (c) Video Visitation Services: 15 minutes free of local visitation per week. $0.25 per 

minutes after 15 free minutes per week of local visitation has been exhausted. Subject to 

Illinois Department of Corrections Jail Standards.  
 

In the event of any inconsistencies between the terms and conditions contained in the Agreement and the 

terms and conditions contained herein, the terms and conditions contained herein shall control.  Except as 
set forth in this Amendment, the Agreement remains in full force and effect, without modification or 

amendment, and is hereby ratified and confirmed.  This Amendment may be executed in multiple 

counterparts, each of which shall be an original, and all of which shall be one and the same contract.  

Original signatures transmitted by facsimile or electronic mail shall be effective to create such counterparts.  
Each person whose signature appears below warrants and represents that they have the requisite authority 

to execute this Amendment on behalf of the entity for which they are signing. 

 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the foregoing Amendment has been executed by the Parties as of the 

latest date listed below. 

 

Company 

Global Tel Link Corporation 

d/b/a ViaPath Technologies 

 
By:       

Name:       

Title:       
Date:________________________________ 

 Premises Provider   

County of Winnebago 

 

 
By:       

Name:       

Title:       
Date:________________________________ 

  

Winnebago County Sheriff’s Office 

 
 

By:       

Name:       
Title:       

Date:________________________________ 

 



 

  

 

Resolution Executive Summary 
 

 

Prepared By:   Marlana Dokken 

Committee:   Public Safety and Judiciary Committee 

Committee Date:        May 17, 2023 

Resolution Title: Resolution Authorizing Execution of a First Amendment to the ARP 
Subrecipient Agreement by and Between the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
and Marshmallow’s Hope 

County Code:   N/A 

Board Meeting Date:  May 25, 2023 

 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?    N/A                        Appropriation Amount:    N/A 

If not, explain funding source:    

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:   61300               Budget Impact:    N/A 
 
Background Information:  Marshmallow’s HOPE HERO Mentors program provides counseling, 
and one-on-one mentorship to at-risk youth living with suicidal ideations ages 9-19 and their 
families as described in the original agreement. Marshmallow’s Hope is seeking an amendment 
to include at-risk emerging adults youth ages 20-26 living with suicidal ideations as a result of 
needs evolving since implementation. This Amendment will not affect the current youth services 
as stated in the original Agreement; and will increase services for at-risk emerging adults youth 
ages 20-26 living with suicidal ideations, and suicide survivor families. 
 
Recommendation:     Amend 2022 CR 110 as requested. 
 
Contract/Agreement:    Original Agreement Attached. 
 
Legal Review:   The State’s Attorney’s Office has reviewed and approved the 

amendment. 
 
Follow-Up:      N/A 
 
 



County Board: 05/25/2023 
 

 
R E S O L U T I O N 

of the 
COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 

Sponsored by:  Brad Lindmark, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:  Public Safety & Judiciary Committee 
 

2023 CR 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF A FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE ARP 
SUBRECIPIENT AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, 

ILLINOIS AND MARSHMALLOW’S HOPE 
 

 WHEREAS, on September 8, 2022, the County of Winnebago, Illinois (the “County”) and 
Marshmallow’s Hope entered into an ARP Subrecipient Agreement (the “Agreement”) (2022-CR-
110), to set forth the obligations of the Parties related to the County pledging a portion of its 
Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds (“SLFRF”) revenue in support of at-risk youth 
ages 9-19 living with suicidal ideations and suicide survivor families; and 

 
WHEREAS, since implementation, the agency has received multiple requests for 

services from the emerging adult population; and 
 

WHEREAS, Marshmallow’s Hope is seeking an amendment to the original Agreement to 
use funds to also serve the at-risk emerging adults youth ages 20-26 living with suicidal ideations 
and suicide survivor families; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County and Marshmallow’s Hope acknowledge and mutually agree that 

this Amendment will not affect the current youth services as stated in the original Agreement; 
and will increase services for at-risk emerging adults ages 20-26 living with suicidal ideations and 
suicide survivor families; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Public Safety & Judiciary Committee of the County Board for the 

County of Winnebago, Illinois, has reviewed the amendment for the aforementioned 
request and recommends approval. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 

Illinois, that the Winnebago County Board Chairman is authorized to execute the First 
Amendment to the ARP Subrecipient Agreement by and between the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois and Marshmallow’s Hope, in substantially the same form as that 
set forth in Exhibit A, attached hereto.  



 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective 
immediately upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to 
prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to Director of Purchasing, Finance 
Director, County Board Office, and County Auditor.                                                                                                           

                                                                           
           Respectfully submitted, 

PUBLIC SAFETY AND JUDICIARY COMMITTEE 
                  

 
AGREE  DISAGREE 

 
 

  

BRAD LINDMARK, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 BRAD LINDMARK, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

AARON BOOKER 
 
 

 AARON BOOKER 
 

KEVIN MCCARTHY  KEVIN MCCARTHY 
 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

                                                                          JEAN CROSBY 
 

 
CHRIS SCROL 
 
 

 CHRIS SCROL 
 

ANGIE GORAL 
 
 

 ANGIE GORAL 
 

TIM NABORS 
 

 TIM NABORS 

The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2023. 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH V. CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 

 



1 
 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE ARP SUBRECIPIENT AGREEMENT BY AND 
BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS AND MARSHMALLOW’S 
HOPE 

 
This FIRST AMENDMENT (“Amendment”) is made and entered into by and between the County 
of Winnebago, Illinois (the “County”) and Marshmallow’s Hope. The County and Marshmallow’s 
Hope are collectively referred to as the “Parties” or individually as a “Party.” 

WHEREAS, on September 8, 2022, the County and Marshmallow’s Hope entered into an 
ARP Subrecipient Agreement (the “Agreement”) (2022-CR-110), to set forth the obligations of 
the Parties related to the County pledging a portion of its Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal 
Recovery Funds (“SLFRF”) revenue in support of at-risk youth ages 9-19 living with suicidal 
ideations and suicide survivor families; and  

WHEREAS, Marshmallow’s Hope has submitted a request to the County seeking an 
amendment to the original Agreement due to needs identified since implementation; and  

WHEREAS, the Parties acknowledge and mutually agree that this Amendment will not 
affect the current youth services as stated in the original Agreement; and will increase services for 
at-risk emerging adults ages 20-26 living with suicidal ideations, and suicide survivor families. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of mutual covenants contained herein, it is agreed 
by and between the Parties to amend the Agreement as follows: 

I. Exhibit B, Scope of Work, Section 1, shall be modified to read as follows: 
 
Marshmallow’s HOPE serves at-risk youth ages 9-19, emerging adults ages 20 - 26 
living with suicidal ideations, and suicide survivor families. The four pillars of the 
program include 1) mentoring, 2) counseling, 3) family support, and 4) survivor 
support. 
 
Marshmallow’s HOPE HERO Mentors program is a one-on-one mentorship program 
serving at-risk youth ages 9-19 living with suicidal ideations. The program is designed 
to be combined with at-risk adult populations, such as first responders, and is a dual 
suicide prevention effort for both the youth and at-risk adults in Winnebago County. 
One-on-one counseling is provided to youth, as well as emerging adults, ages 20 – 26.  
 

II. Exhibit B, Scope of Work, Section 2, shall be modified, keeping the original text 
and adding the following: 

Emerging adults ages 20-26 will be referred to the Counselor by Marshmallow’s Hope 
staff member who has been identified as needing a mental health assessment. The initial 
mental health assessment will be a research based bio-psycho-social assessment to 
begin developing mental health plan of care. During the initial assessment each 
emerging adult will complete GAD-7 (anxiety screening tool), PHQ-9 (depression 
screening tool) and assessment for adverse experiences. Appropriate releases for 



2 
 

consent of information will be signed for ongoing collaborative relationship with 
outside agencies. 
 
After the referral is placed and received, an initial mental health assessment will be 
completed. Based upon the assessment, recommendations will be made for initial 
counseling, outside support services in the community, or recommendation for higher 
level of care in the community or in the surrounding area. 
  
If the assessments conclude immediate counseling is appropriate, the contracted 
counselor will implement a variety of psycho-social models based on continuous 
assessment. Different therapeutic therapies that may be used would include, but are not 
limited to: Cognitive-Behavioral therapy, Mindfulness, Cognitive therapy, Seeking 
Safety Framework, Solution-Focused Therapy and group therapy. 
 

III. Exhibit B, Scope of Work, Performance Measures/Standards, shall be modified, 
keeping the original text regarding ages 9 – 19 and adding the following representing 
ages 20 - 26: 
 

Objectives Performance Measures 
Projected 

10/01/2022-
09/30/2023 

Projected 
10/01/2023-
09/30/2024 

Intake Survey of all 
participants  # At risk for suicide  34 52 

Mid-program survey  # suicidal ideations diminished 32 49 

Exit Survey # suicidal ideations diminished 
at exit 30 45 

Marshmallow’s HOPE app 
daily interaction 

# emerging adults interacting 
daily  25 37 

Emerging Adults Assessed for 
behavioral health needs  # emerging adults assessed 34 52 

Two (2) Group Sessions (90-
minutes) weekly  

# emerging adults 
participating in weekly group 34 52 

Individual Counseling (30–60-
minute sessions) weekly 

# emerging adults requiring 
immediate counseling 32 49 

 
 

 Except as modified by this Amendment, all other terms and conditions of the original Agreement 
shall remain unchanged and in full force and effect. 
 
 
 
 
 

<signature page follows> 
 
 



3 
 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Amendment on the _____ day 
of __________________, 2023. 
 
 
MARSHMALLOW’S HOPE CORP.   COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS   
        
 
________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Laura Kane      Joseph V. Chiarelli 
Executive Director     Chairman of the County Board of the 
Date:____________________________  County of Winnebago, Illinois 
       Date:_______________________________  
 
       Attest:  
 
        ____________________________    
        Lori Gummow 
       Clerk of the County Board of the 
       County of Winnebago, Illinois 
       Date:_______________________________ 

       





































 

  

 

Resolution Executive Summary 
 

 

Prepared By:   Marlana Dokken 

Committee:   Public Safety & Judiciary Committee 

Committee Date:        May 17, 2023 

Resolution Title: Resolution to Extend Project Safe Neighborhoods Agreement  

County Code:   N/A 

Board Meeting Date:  May 25, 2023 

 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?    N/A                        Appropriation Amount:    N/A 

If not, explain funding source:    

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:   N/A                    Budget Impact:    N/A 
 
Background Information:  The County acts as Fiscal Agency for the United States Department of 
Justice, Northern District of Illinois Project Safe Neighborhoods. Sub-award Agreements are pre-
selected by the Project Safe Neighborhoods Task Force with final approval by the Department of 
Justice. Travelers & Immigrants Aid DBA Heartland Alliance for Human Needs & Human Rights is 
a sub-awardee and is requesting a no-cost extension due to late implementation. 
 
Recommendation:     Amend 2021 CR 168 as requested. 
 
Contract/Agreement:    Original Agreement and Amendment Attached. 
 
Legal Review:   The State’s Attorney’s Office has reviewed and approved the 

amendment. 
 
Follow-Up:      N/A 
 
 



County Board: 05/25/2023 
 

 
R E S O L U T I O N 

of the 
COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 

Sponsored by:  Brad Lindmark, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:  Public Safety & Judiciary Committee 
 

2023 CR 
 

RESOLUTION TO EXTEND PROJECT SAFE NEIGHBORHOODS AGREEMENT  
 

 WHEREAS, on March 11, 2022, the County of Winnebago, Illinois (the “County”) and 
Travelers & Immigrants Aid DBA Heartland Alliance for Human Needs & Human Rights entered 
into a Department of Justice Subrecipient Agreement to carry out the goals of Project Safe 
Neighborhoods on behalf of the U.S. Attorney’s Office, Northern District of Illinois; and 

 
WHEREAS, Heartland Alliance has submitted a request to the County seeking an 

amendment to the original Agreement granting a no-cost extension; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Parties acknowledge and mutually agree that this Amendment will not 
affect the services as outlined in the original Agreement; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Public Safety & Judiciary Committee of the County Board for the 

County of Winnebago, Illinois, has reviewed the amendment for the aforementioned 
request and recommends approval. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 

Illinois, that the Winnebago County Board Chairman is authorized to execute the First 
Amendment to the Subrecipient Agreement by and between the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois and, in substantially the same form as that set forth in Exhibit A, 
attached hereto.  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective 
immediately upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to 
prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to Director of Purchasing, Finance 
Director, County Board Office, and County Auditor.                                                                                                           

                                                                                          
           Respectfully submitted, 

PUBLIC SAFETY AND JUDICIARY COMMITTEE 
        



 

          
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 

  

BRAD LINDMARK, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 BRAD LINDMARK, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

AARON BOOKER 
 
 

 AARON BOOKER 
 

KEVIN MCCARTHY  KEVIN MCCARTHY 
 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

                                                                          JEAN CROSBY 
 

 
CHRIS SCROL 
 
 

 CHRIS SCROL 
 

ANGIE GORAL 
 
 

 ANGIE GORAL 
 

TIM NABORS 
 
 

 TIM NABORS 
 

The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2023. 

 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH V. CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 



1 
 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE PROJECT SAFE NEIGHBORHOODS AGREEMENT 
BY AND BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS AND TRAVELERS & 
IMMIGRANTS AID DBA HEARTLAND ALLIANCE FOR HUMAN NEEDS & HUMAN 
RIGHTS 
 
This FIRST AMENDMENT (“Amendment”) is made and entered into by and between the County 
of Winnebago, Illinois (the “County”) and Travelers & Immigrants Aid DBA Heartland Alliance 
for Human Needs & Human Rights. The County and Travelers & Immigrants Aid DBA Heartland 
Alliance for Human Needs & Human Rights (“Heartland Alliance”) are collectively referred to as 
the “Parties” or individually as a “Party.” 

WHEREAS, on March 11, 2022, the County and Travelers & Immigrants Aid DBA 
Heartland Alliance for Human Needs & Human Rights entered into an Agreement (the 
“Agreement”) (2021-CR-168), to set forth the obligations of the Parties related to the 
implementation of Project Safe Neighborhoods Fiscal Year 2021; and  

WHEREAS, Heartland Alliance has submitted a request to the County seeking an 
amendment to the original Agreement granting a no-cost extension; and  

WHEREAS, Section 5 of the original Agreement states “The term may be extended by 
mutual agreement of the parties in writing; however, it shall not extend beyond September 30, 
2024”; and 

WHEREAS, the Parties acknowledge and mutually agree that this Amendment will not 
affect the services as outlined in the original Agreement.  

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of mutual covenants contained herein, it is agreed 
by and between the Parties to amend the Agreement as follows: 

I. Organization and Grant Specific Information, shall be modified to read as follows: 

Subaward Period of Performance: 04/01/2022 – 09/30/2024 

Except as modified by this Amendment, all other terms and conditions of the original Agreement 
shall remain unchanged and in full force and effect. 
 
 
 
 
 

<signature page follows> 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



2 
 

 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Amendment on the _____ day 
of __________________, 2023. 
 
 
TRAVELERS & IMMIGRANTS AID            COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS   
DBA HEARTLAND ALLIANCE FOR  
HUMAN NEEDS & HUMAN RIGHTS    
        
 
________________________________  ___________________________________ 
       Joseph V. Chiarelli 
       Chairman of the County Board of the 
Date:____________________________  County of Winnebago, Illinois 
       Date:_______________________________  
 
       Attest:  
 
        ____________________________    
        Lori Gummow 
       Clerk of the County Board of the 
       County of Winnebago, Illinois 
       Date:_______________________________ 

       



Page 1 of 46



RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the County has been selected to act as Fiscal Agency by the Project Safe 

Neighborhood (PSN) Task Force of the United States Attorney’s Office of the Northern District 

of Illinois and awarded funds through the United States Department of Justice; and 

WHEREAS, Heartland Alliance has been selected by the PSN Task Force of the United 

States Attorney’s Office Northern District of Illinois as recipient of Federal Fiscal Year 2021 

Project Safe Neighborhoods funds; and 

WHEREAS, Heartland Alliance agrees to implement Project Safe Neighborhoods, 

Federal Fiscal Year 2021, pursuant to the terms and provisions of this Agreement. 

WHEREAS, it is the intent of the Parties to this Agreement to perform all of its applicable 

duties and responsibilities as provided within all of the attached Exhibits and made apart hereof, 

and as imposed by the Grantor and the laws of the State of Illinois. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above recitals, and the mutual covenants, terms 

and provisions contained herein, or attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, the 

Parties agree to the following: 

SECTION 1. OBJECTIVES OF PROJECT SAFE NEIGHBORHOODS FFY 2021. 

A. Implement one or more effective strategies to prevent, respond to, and reduce violent crime.

B. Support the specific activities and resource requirements of the PSN team with the goal of

implementing the district’s PSN strategy in collaboration with all relevant partners and

stakeholders.

SECTION 2. ALLOCATION OF COST. 

Grantor shall pay the Sub recipient for the performance of the Agreement at a maximum 

amount not exceed $75,000.00 dollars for the life of the Agreement starting from the date this 

Agreement is entered into until its expiration date identified in Section 5. Grantor will not be liable 

for or owe Sub recipient or any other entity for services that exceed the threshold without Grantor’s 

written consent.  

The Sub recipient shall submit invoices on a monthly basis in a format approved by the 

Grantor.  Invoices shall include a signed, detailed accounting of activities and hours worked per 

individual as identified in the Scope of Work contained in Exhibit A. The Grantor shall not be 

liable for any services rendered outside those outlined in Exhibit A, including but not limited to 

services rendered by individuals not identified in the budget. Invoices shall be paid within 10 days 

of receipt of funds and the Grantor shall have the right to review, correct, revise, and dispute any 

charges for Services as required. 

Page 2 of 46



SECTION 3. PARTIES’ RESPONSIBILITIES. 

A. The County shall be Fiscal Agency, managing all fiscal matters on behalf of the PSN team and

sub award recipients, including, but not limited to:

1) Drawing down federal funds, as needed.

2) Payments to each contractor or Sub recipient.

3) Submitting Grant Adjustment Notices (GANs).

4) Ensuring timely submission of reports.

5) Monitoring of sub awards, ensuring sub award recipients adhere to the financial and

administrative rules in the DOJ Grants Financial Guide.

B. Heartland Alliance shall be responsible for implementing the work or other services described

herein, according to documents listed below and incorporated herein. The Sub recipient is

responsible for review of and compliance with each of the terms of this Agreement. The parties

agree that this Agreement shall include, as if fully set forth herein, the following component

parts:

1) This document

2) Exhibit A – Scope of Work

3) Exhibit B – Budget Detail Worksheet/Narrative

4) Exhibit C – Performance Measures / Reporting

5) Exhibit D – Contacts

6) Exhibit E – Terms, Conditions, and Representations

7) Exhibit F – Award Letter / Special Conditions (See Section 12 below)

SECTION 4. DEFAULT. 

A default in any of the provisions of this Agreement by either party may be cured upon 

written notice by the other party within thirty (30) days of receipt of such notice. The Parties agree 

to meet and confer in an attempt to resolve disputes arising out of this Agreement. If a dispute is 

not resolved within sixty (60) days after the cure period, the Parties are free to pursue all legal and 

equitable remedies otherwise provided by law, unless a party elects to terminate the Agreement 

pursuant to Section 6.  

SECTION 5: EFFECTIVE DATE AND TERM. 

This Agreement shall be effective on April 1, 2022 and remain in place for 12 (twelve) 

months, or unless otherwise terminated as provided in Section 6. The term may be extended by 

mutual agreement of the parties in writing; however, it shall not extend beyond September 30, 

2024. 

Page 3 of 46



SECTION 6. TERMINATION. 

This Agreement may be terminated at any time upon any party providing written notice on 

the other party of its intention to terminate the Agreement at least thirty (30) days prior to the 

effective date of termination. 

SECTION 7. INDEMNIFICATION. 

The County shall indemnify the Sub recipient for any and all claims, losses, damage or 

expenses, including, but not limited to, reasonable attorney’s fees, resulting from any act or 

omission on the part of the County, its agents, officers, or employees.  The Sub recipient shall 

indemnify, defend and hold harmless the County for any and all claims, losses, damage or 

expenses, including, but not limited to, reasonable attorney’s fees, resulting from any act or 

omission on the part of the Sub recipient, its agents, officers, or employees. 

SECTION 8. ASSIGNMENT. 

Neither party shall assign this Agreement without the prior written approval of the other 

party. 

SECTION 9. AMENDMENTS. 

Any amendments shall be by written instrument executed by the parties hereto, acting 

therein by their duly authorized representatives. 

SECTION 10. NOTICES. 

All notices, approvals, demands, requests or other documents required or permitted under 

this Agreement, other than routine communications necessary for the day-to-day operation of this 

program, shall be deemed properly given if hand delivered or sent by nationally recognized 

overnight carrier or mailed by certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, to the 

following addresses: 

If to the COUNTY: 

Winnebago County  

Attn: Patrick Thompson, County Administrator 

Winnebago County Administration Building 

404 Elm Street 

Rockford, Illinois 61101 

If to HEARTLAND ALLIANCE: 

Heartland Alliance READI Chicago 

Attn: Marci Kresin, COO 

208 S. LaSalle, Suite 1300 

Chicago, IL 60604 

Page 4 of 46



Receipt of any notice shall be deemed effective upon receipt, if delivered personally, or one (1) 

day after mailing if sent by overnight carrier, or three (3) days after deposit in the U.S. mail, with 

proper postage and properly addressed. 

SECTION 11. GOVERNING LAW. 

The parties agree this Agreement has been executed and delivered in Illinois and that their 

relationship and any and all disputes, controversies or claims arising under this Agreement shall 

be governed by the laws of the State of Illinois. The parties further agree that the exclusive venue 

for all such disputes shall be the Circuit Court of the 17th Judicial Circuit of Winnebago County, 

Illinois. 

SECTION 12. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS. 

The parties agree to comply with all applicable federal and state laws, statutes, and 

regulations. The Sub-recipient further agrees to comply with all applicable conditions and 

restrictions included in the OJP award, including but not limited to all “pass-through” requirements 

and Part 200 Uniform requirements.  

SECTION 13. HEADINGS. 

Sections and other headings contained in this Agreement are for reference purposes only 

and are not intended to describe, interpret, define or limit the scope, extent or intent of this 

Agreement or any provision hereof. 

SECTION 14. SEVERABILITY. 

If any provisions, covenants, agreements or portions of this Agreement or its application 

to any person, entity or property is held invalid, such invalidity shall not invalidate any other 

portion of this Agreement. The parties intend to be bound to this agreement even in the event that 

a portion of the agreement is declared invalid, in accordance with law. 

SECTION 15. COUNTERPARTS. 

This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an 

original and all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument. Signatures sent via 

facsimile or e-mail transmission shall be deemed original signatures for purposes of creating a 

binding agreement.   

SECTION 16. WAIVERS. 

No terms or provisions hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused, unless such 

waiver or consent shall be in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  

Any consent by any party to, or waiver of, a breach by the other, whether express or implied, shall 

not constitute consent to, waiver of, or excuse for any other different or subsequent breach. 

Page 5 of 46



SECTION 17. AUTHORITY 

The Grantor and Sub-recipient each warrant to the other that they have the authority to 

enter into this Agreement and that the person or persons executing this Agreement on their behalf 

has been duly authorized to act as the representative or officer of each respective party in affixing 

their signatures to the Agreement. The Grantor and Sub-recipient hereto agree to sign such 

documents, enact such ordinances or resolutions, or perform such further obligations as may be 

necessary to effectuate the purposes of this Agreement. 

<signature page follows> 

Page 6 of 46



Page 7 of 46



EXHIBIT A 

SCOPE OF WORK STATEMENT 

Heartland Alliance (“Sub recipient”), in accordance with its Agreement with Winnebago County 

(“Grantor”), shall perform the work (“Work”) which is laid out in the Scope of Work approved by 

the Project Safe Neighborhoods Task Force and the fiscal agency.  

1. Provide summary of service, program, project to be supported or delivered by PSN funds, and

how it will lead to a reduction in violent crime.

PSN funds will contribute to Heartland Alliance’s new READI for Reentry Project, an expansion of READI 
Chicago, a community-based violence prevention program. The goal of the program is to reduce 
violence involvement and incarceration by identifying, engaging, and providing tailored pre- and post-
release support to men who are at high risk for violence involvement. The program will target men 
who have violent, gun-related offenses, and who are 6-12 months from being released from prison to 
Chicago.  Preference will be given to emerging adults (18-29) who indicate a high risk score on the Ohio 
Risk Assessment System (ORAS), which IDOC administers, and who have indicators of risk for gun 
violence involvement, such as violent offense conviction, gang affiliation, and past violence 
victimization. Each participant will receive the 6-month pre-release portion of the program at an IDOC 
correctional center, followed by 6 months of post-release services in Chicago. The program model 
integrates key components of READI Chicago’s successful violence reduction model with additional 
services that are evidence-based in the field of reentry. Program components will include a focus on 
assessment, reentry case planning, cognitive behavior interventions (CBI), employment supports 
(including job readiness sessions, career exploration, assignment of virtual training modules, job 
pathway alignment and interview preparation), and family and community reintegration supports. 
Post-release services will include one- time cash assistance upon release from prison and six months of 
engagement focused on case management and resource coordination, employment supports 
(including job search, application preparation, and retention coaching), and the continuation of CBI, 
support groups, and family engagement. These program elements are expected to reduce participants’ 
involvement in violent crime as they are drawn from the core elements of Heartland Alliance’s READI 
Chicago, which has demonstrated success at reducing participant arrests for homicides and shootings. 

2. If applicable, describe public awareness/community outreach activities under this program.

Heartland Alliance has presented on READI for Reentry to potential employer partners, support service 
providers, and reentry stakeholders. Additionally, READI Chicago, where READI for Reentry will be 
housed, is launching a READI Chicago Community Organizing Team, collaborating with participants and 
their families to formulate strategies to advance public safety, trauma recovery, and criminal justice 
reform; and collaboratively and intentionally build and strengthen relationships with various public 
sector stakeholders to affect change. READI’s dedicated community organizers will advise on 
organizing strategies for effective campaigns related to systems change and train and support the 
mobilization team on organizing strategies. However, participants themselves will ultimately drive 
action toward systemic change on issues that directly impact their communities – informing the focus 
and priorities of organizing campaigns and activities, and recruiting and engaging stakeholders. 

Page 8 of 46



3. Describe target population, include number served using PSN funds and eligibility requirements.

The program will target men who have violent, gun-related offenses, and who are 6-12 months from 
being released from prison to Chicago.  Preference will be given to emerging adults (18-29) who indicate 
a high risk score on the Ohio Risk Assessment System (ORAS), which the Illinois Department of 
Correction (IDOC) administers, and who have indicators of risk for gun violence involvement, such as 
violent offense conviction, gang affiliation, and past violence victimization. While the program will be 
available to men returning to any part of Chicago, IDOC has agreed to give preference to men returning 
to CPD District 11. We also anticipate that a majority of participants will return to Districts 2, 10, 11, and 
15, as these are the Districts that READI Chicago targets as they have the highest rate of gun violence 
(they also have among the highest rates of people returning from prison). 

READI for Reentry seeks to enroll and provide services to up to 120 men during a three-year period 
with pre-release and post-release services, including enrollment of 60 men in Year 1. PSN funds will 
be used to hire the second prison-based Reentry Specialist, which will enable the program to enroll 30 
additional participants from January 1, 2021 to December 31, 2022.  

4. Describe program referral and intake process.

READI for Reentry will adapt READI Chicago’s parole participant eligibility screening tool to a prison 
context. Its use by READI Chicago has resulted in referrals of parolees who are in the 93rd percentile 
among Chicagoans at risk for future gun violence perpetration or victimization. IDOC has committed to 
instructing its counselors across the prison system to use the screening tool to screen for READI for 
Reentry eligibility. Eligible men will be referred to READI for Reentry’s Reentry Specialist, who will 
verify eligibility and will send a participant interest form and program description to the referral. 
When the Reentry Specialist receives the completed form, indicating that the participant is interested, 
the Reentry Specialist will notify a designated person at IDOC, who will arrange to transfer the man to 
the correctional center where programming is taking place (IDOC has committed to making these 
transfers).  Once the participant arrives at the correctional center, the Reentry Specialist will conduct 
an Orientation with the participant, which will involve describing the program model and participant 
expectations, and assessing participant needs, strengths, employment/education history, and goals.  

5. Describe in detail how each service will be provided.

Pre-release services (6 months at IDOC correctional center): READI for Reentry team will commit two 
Reentry Specialists to IDOC correctional center(s) to deliver in-person group cognitive behavior 
intervention and job readiness sessions; one-on-one reentry case planning and career exploration 
sessions; and assignment of self-paced virtual industry training, job readiness, and educational learning 
modules. Modules will be matched to individual aptitude and career goals. Case plans will track and 
monitor success and follow the participant into the community. With consent from the participant, the 
Reentry Specialists will also engage with participant family members to help them prepare to receive 
their loved one and support them in achieving their goals. IDOC will provide program computers and 
classroom space for participants.    
Transitional Services: Continuity of care from prison to the community is crucial to the program design. 
The 6-month pre-release services provide establishment of long-term relationships and resources that 
follow the individual into Chicago. The Chicago-based Reentry Employment Navigator will meet with 
participants 30 days prior to release to finalize their reentry case plans and get to know each other. 
Plans will support the transition to the community by identifying immediate needs to be addressed 
within the first days of release, and by providing a preliminary schedule and resources for maintaining 
connection to READI for Reentry post-release. 
Post-Release Services (6 months in Chicago): Post-release services will be initiated via a warm handoff 
between prison-based Reentry Specialist and Chicago-based Reentry Employment Navigator. The 

Page 9 of 46



Reentry Employment Navigator will then provide weekly post-release services, including CBI group 
session; weekly one-on-one workforce development and case management sessions, referrals to 
resources, and assistance with job search and applications. The Reentry Employment Navigator will 
also cultivate employers, identify industry requirements, and keep the prison-based staff abreast of 
employment opportunities and requirements in Chicago. Post-release individual services will occur 
remotely or in person, adopting the virtual services practices developed by READI Chicago. Since 
moving some of READI Chicago services online because of COVID-19, READI Chicago staff have 
provided regular remote check-ins and CBI; and participants have used online job readiness, financial, 
and computer training resources. Staff are now proficient in providing remote services; and the 
majority of participants will have access to a cell phone or the internet, which will also make remote 
services possible for them. HA’s internal communications are secure and encrypted; and video 
conferencing is password protected and host moderated. The program will work with faith-based 
organizations for donated smart phones and laptops, which has proven successful in the past. Staff will 

use Salesforce database to upload case plans, record services, and document attendance.  

6. Our PSN Task Force must use 30 percent of PSN funding to support the activities of gang task

forces. If applicable, describe how your program assists in the reduction of gang activity.

Gang affiliation is one of the high risk indicators that make someone eligible for READI for Reentry. 
Therefore, many participants will have gang affiliations. READI for Reentry assists in the reduction of 
gang activity among its participants through its cognitive behavioral interventions (CBI) and 
employment supports. The CBI curriculum, which is derived from READI Chicago’s experience 
delivering evidence-based CBI curricula to violence-involved participants, specifically addresses risky 
behaviors associated with gang activity, such as tools and role plays to identify and avoid risky peers 
and locations, dealing with anger and frustration, and applying cost benefit analysis and other CBI tools 
to risky situations. Additionally, the individualized employment supports help participants to set and 
work towards goals that are safe, pro-social, and productive. These supports help participants obtain 
sustainable employment, allowing them to support themselves and their families without turning to 
the street economy. Their relationship with READI for Reentry staff will help them honor their 
commitments and have a role model. Finally, participants who are eligible for and interested in joining 
READI Chicago will also have the opportunity to benefit from that violence reduction program upon 
release from prison. 

Task 
Staff Position or 

Person Responsible 
Date Due 

Coordinate with IDOC to initiate process for 

monthly referrals and intakes to achieve overall 

goal of 30 new enrollments  

Program Manager 4/15/22 

Hire, train, and obtain security clearance for 

PSN-funded Reentry Specialist Program Manager 5/1/22 

Deliver pre-release program inside prison Reentry Specialist 5/15/22 

Submit monthly invoices 
Heartland Alliance 

Finance Department 

monthly; as 

contractually defined 

Page 10 of 46



Submit quarterly Periodic Financial Report 
Heartland Alliance 

Finance Department 

quarterly; as 

contractually defined 

Submit quarterly data report 
Heartland Alliance 

Finance Department 

July 15 

October 15 

January 15 

April 15 

Complete all fiscal and programmatic closeout 

materials 

Heartland Alliance 

Finance Department 

As contractually 

defined 

Scope Revisions: Subrecipient shall obtain prior approval from Winnebago County whenever a 

Scope revision is necessary for one or more of the reasons enumerated in 2 CFR 200.308. All 

requests for Scope revisions shall be submitted in writing to Winnebago County for approval. All 

requests for Scope revisions that require Awarding Agency approval shall then be submitted by 

Winnebago County to the Awarding Agency for approval. Expenditure of funds under a requested 

revision is prohibited and will not be reimbursed if expended before Winnebago County and, when 

required, the Awarding Agency gives written approval. See 2 CFR 200.308. 

Intentionally Left Blank 

Page 11 of 46



EXHIBIT B 
BUDGET and BUDGET NARRATIVE 

Page 12 of 46



Intentionally Left Blank 

Page 13 of 46



 

 

EXHIBIT C 
PERFORMANCE MEASURES / REPORTING 

 

Sub Recipient is required to provide relevant data by submitting performance metrics as well as 

narrative on a quarterly basis. An example of performance indicators is available at Project Safe 

Neighborhoods Program (ojp.gov).  Additional measureable outcomes will be based on activities 

agreed upon in the sub recipient Scope of Work. 

Sub Recipient will provide data to Grantor to indicate whether PSN programming and funded 

personnel / equipment is having the desired effect, restated here: 

1) Reduced recidivism rates among PSN funded program participants;  

2) Improved use of assessments and data to support more efficient and effective local violence 

reduction strategies;  

3) Reduction in violent-crime arrests and juvenile justice involvement; and  

4) Continued coordination and expansion of federal, state, and local law enforcement partner 

efforts. 

 

Overall goal of your program: To reduce recidivism and violence involvement among men at highest 

risk of gun violence involvement exiting prison to Chicago 

Process Objectives Performance Measures 

Projected 

04/01/2022-

03/31/2023 

Documentation and record-keeping 

practices and protocols are developed and 

implemented. 

- Documentation and Data 

Collection Standard Operation 

Procedure 

- Cloud-based database 

4/31/22 

Full-time staff are trained and oriented in 

cognitive behavior intervention, Onboard 

Chicago Bridge training curricula, as well 

as trauma-informed, restorative justice, 

risk-needs-responsivity approach. 

# of staff trained and oriented 1 staff 

IDOC staff use validated assessment tools 

(ORAS and READI Chicago’s validated 

eligibility screening tool) to identify and 

refer men at highest risk of gun violence 

involvement prior to transfer to IDOC 

correctional center. 

- Referral and Transfer Standard 

Operating Procedure 

- READI for Reentry Eligibility 

Screening Tool 

4/1/22 

READI for Reentry staff deliver program 

model through a trauma-informed, 

restorative justice, risk-needs-responsivity 

approach. 

- # of FTE READI for Reentry 

staff delivering program model 

1 staff 

5/1/22 

Attend quarterly PSN Task Force meetings 
# of PSN Task Force meetings 

attended 
4 meetings 

Page 14 of 46

https://bja.ojp.gov/sites/g/files/xyckuh186/files/media/document/PSN-Measures.pdf
https://bja.ojp.gov/sites/g/files/xyckuh186/files/media/document/PSN-Measures.pdf


Outcome Objectives Performance Measures 

Projected 

04/01/2021-

03/31/2021 

Enroll 30 participants in READI for 

Reentry program 
# of participants enrolled 

30 participants 

by 

3/31/23 

Case management outcomes:  100% of 

participants complete a needs assessment, 

have reentry case plans upon release, and a 

coordinated referral to at least one 

provider 

# of Needs Assessments completed 

# of participants with Reentry Case 

Plans when exiting prison 

# of participants receiving referral to a 

community-based provider 

30 Needs 

Assessments 

15 participants 

15 participants 

CBI outcomes include: 90% of participants 

still enrolled in R4R at time of release will 

have completed 48 CBI sessions 

# of participants who have completed 

48 CBI sessions 
13 participants 

Employment outcomes for participants 

still enrolled in R4R at time of release 

include: 90% complete job readiness 

training  

# of participants who completed job 

readiness training 
13 participants 

Ninety percent of participant families or 

friends will receive at least 2 calls or visits. 

# of participants families or friend 

receiving 2 phone calls 
13 participants 

Recidivism outcome is to reduce baseline 

rate of 29%. 
# of participants remaining out of 

IDOC for 1 year post-release 

0 participants 

will have been 

out for 1 year 

Sub Recipient shall comply with all reporting, data collection and evaluation requirements, as 

prescribed by the grant awarding agency and Winnebago County following the deadlines identified 

below. 

REPORTING SCHEDULE 

Reporting Period Date Required Due Date 

April - June Performance Measures, Narrative Questions July 15th 

July - September Performance Measures October 15th 

October - December Performance Measures, Narrative Questions January 15th 

January - March Performance Measures April 15th 

Final Close Out Performance Measures, Narrative 

Questions, Closeout Questions 

15 days after grant end date 

Note: If a due date falls on a weekend, report is due on the preceding Friday. 

Page 15 of 46



 

 

EXHIBIT D 
CONTACTS 

 

Unless specified elsewhere, all notices required or desired to be sent by either Party shall be sent to the 

persons listed below. 

 

Winnebago County Contacts Sub recipient Contacts 

Administrative Contact 

Name:  Marlana Dokken 

Title: Director, Office of Criminal Justice Initiatives 

Address: 404 Elam Street 

                 Rockford, IL 61101 

 

Telephone: (815) 319-4059 

Email: mdokken@wincoil.us  

 

Administrative Contact (Reports) 

Name: Marci Kresin 

Title: COO 

Address: 208 S. LaSalle, Suite 1300 

               Chicago, IL 60604 

 

Telephone: 224-688-6466 

Email: mkresin@heartlandalliance.org  

Alternate/Additional Contact 

Name: Patrick Thompson 

Title: Winnebago County Administrator 

Address: 404 Elm Street 

               Rockford, IL 61101 

 

Telephone: (779) 707-0906 

Email: pthompson@wincoil.us  

Program Contact 

Name: Sophia Manuel 

Title: Sr. Program Manager 

Address: 208 S. LaSalle, Suite 1300 

               Chicago, IL 60604 

 

Telephone: 201-220-7349    

Email: smanuel@heartlandalliance.org  

 

Invoices and Reports Sent to: 

Name:  Marlana Dokken 

Title: Director, Office of Criminal Justice Initiatives 

Address: 404 Elm Street 

               Rockford, IL 61101 

 

Telephone: (815) 319-4059 

Email: mdokken@wincoil.us  

 

Payments Sent to: 

Name: Godwin Atoe    

Title: Senior Financial Analyst   

Address: 208 S. LaSalle, Suite 1300 

               Chicago, IL 60604 

 

Telephone: 708-297-1502 

Email: gatoe@heartlandalliance.org  

 

 

Page 16 of 46

mailto:mdokken@wincoil.us
mailto:mkresin@heartlandalliance.org
mailto:pthompson@wincoil.us
mailto:mdokken@wincoil.us
mailto:gatoe@heartlandalliance.org


EXHIBIT E 

TERMS, CONDITIONS, AND REPRESENTATIONS 

1. Representations

1.1 Compliance with Internal Revenue Code. Sub recipient certifies that it does and will

comply with all provisions of the Federal Internal Revenue Code (26 USC 1), the Illinois 

Income Tax Act (35 ILCS 5), and all rules promulgated thereunder, including 

withholding provisions and timely deposits of employee taxes and unemployment 

insurance taxes. 

1.2 Compliance with Uniform Grant Rules (2 CFR Part 200). Sub recipient certifies that it 

shall adhere to the applicable Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and 

Audit Requirements, which are published in Title 2, Part 200 of the Code of Federal 

Regulations, and are incorporated herein by reference. See 44 Ill. Admin. Code 

7000.30(b)(1)(A). 

1.3 Compliance with Registration Requirements. Sub recipient certifies that it (i) is registered 

with the Federal System for Award Management (SAM); (ii) is in good standing with the 

Illinois Secretary of State, if applicable; and (iii) has a valid DUNS number. It is Sub 

recipient’s responsibility to remain current with these registrations and requirements. If 

Sub recipient’s status with regard to any of these requirements change, Sub recipient must 

notify Winnebago County in writing immediately.  

2. Certifications

Sub recipient, its officers, and directors shall be responsible for compliance with the

enumerated certifications to the extent that the certifications apply to Sub recipient and/or the

Work performed under this Agreement:

2.1 Bribery. Sub recipient certifies that it has not been convicted of bribery or attempting to

bribe an officer or employee of the State of Illinois, nor made an admission of guilt of 

such conduct which is a matter of record (30 ILCS 500/50-5). 

2.2 Bid Rigging. Sub recipient certifies that it has not been barred from contracting with a 

unit of State or local government as a result of a violation of Paragraph 33E-3 or 33E-4 

of the Criminal Code of 1961 (720 ILCS 5/33E-3 or 720 ILCS 5/33E-4, respectively). 

2.3 Debt to State. Sub recipient certifies that neither it, nor its affiliate(s), is/are barred from 

receiving a contract or award because Sub recipient, or its affiliate(s), is/are delinquent in 

the payment of any debt to the State, unless Sub recipient, or its affiliate(s), has/have 

entered into a deferred payment plan to pay off the debt, and Sub recipient acknowledges 

Winnebago County may declare the Agreement void if the certification is false (30 ILCS 

500/50-11). 

2.4 Dues and Fees. Sub recipient certifies that it is not prohibited from receiving a contract 

or award because it pays dues or fees on behalf of its employees or agents, or subsidizes 

Page 17 of 46



or otherwise reimburses them for payment of their dues or fees to any club which 

unlawfully discriminates (775 ILCS 25/1 et seq.). 

2.5 Pro-Children Act. Sub recipient certifies that it is in compliance with the Pro-Children 

Act of 2001 in that it prohibits smoking in any portion of its facility used for the provision 

of health, day care, early childhood development services, education or library services 

to children under the age of eighteen (18), which services are supported by Federal or 

State government assistance (except such portions of the facilities which are used for 

inpatient substance abuse treatment) (20 USC 7181-7184). 

2.6 Drug-Free Work Place. If Sub recipient is not an individual, Sub recipient certifies it will 

provide a drug free workplace pursuant to the Drug Free Workplace Act. 30 ILCS 580/3. 

If Sub recipient is an individual and this Agreement is valued at more than $5,000, Sub 

recipient certifies it shall not engage in the unlawful manufacture, distribution, 

dispensation, possession, or use of a controlled substance during the performance of the 

Agreement. 30 ILCS 580/4. Sub recipient further certifies that it is in compliance with 

the government-wide requirements for a drug-free workplace as set forth in 41 USC 8102. 

2.7 Debarment. Sub recipient certifies that it is not debarred, suspended, proposed for 

debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this 

Agreement by any Federal department or agency pursuant to 2 CFR 200.205(a), or by the 

State (See 30 ILCS 708/25(6)(G)).  

2.8 Non-procurement Debarment and Suspension. Sub recipient certifies that it is in 

compliance with Subpart C of 2 CFR Part 180 as supplemented by 2 CFR Part 376, 

Subpart C. 

2.9 Clean Air and Water. Contracts (and subrecipients) exceeding $150,000.00, must contain 

a provision requiring the contractor (or subrecipients) to agree to comply with all 

requirements of the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401 et seq.), and the Clean Water Act 

[Federal Water Pollution Control Act] as amended (33 U.S.C. 1251-1387). Violations 

must be reported to the Federal Awarding Agency and the Regional Office of the 

Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). Reference: Part 200 Appendix II(G) 

2.10 Procurement of recovered materials. A non-Federal entity that is a state agency or agency 

of a political subdivision of a state must include a provision requiring contractors to 

comply with section 6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act, as amended by the Resource 

Conservation and Recovery Act. Per Section 6002, where the purchase price of the item 

exceeds $10,000 or the value of the quantity acquired during the preceding fiscal year 

exceeded $10,000, these non-Federal entities and their contractors must procure only 

items, designated in guidelines of the EPA at 40 C.F.R. § 247, containing the highest 

percentage of recovered materials practicable, consistent with maintaining a satisfactory 

level of competition. These non-Federal entities and their contractors must procure solid 

waste management services so that energy and resource recovery are maximized, and 

they must establish an affirmative procurement program for procurement of recovered 

Page 18 of 46



materials identified in the EPA guidelines. Reference: Part 200 Appendix II(J), 2 C.F.R. 

§ 200.322.

2.11 Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Sub recipient certifies that it is in 

compliance with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 

(HIPAA), Public Law No. 104-191, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164, and the Social 

Security Act, 42 USC 1320d-2 through 1320d-7, in that it may not use or disclose 

protected health information other than as permitted or required by law and agrees to use 

appropriate safeguards to prevent use or disclosure of the protected health information. 

Sub recipient shall maintain, for a minimum of six (6) years, all protected health 

information. 

2.12 Human Subjects Research. Sub recipient agrees to comply with all federal and state laws 

regarding the conduct of research involving human subjects.  Sub recipient shall not 

publish or otherwise disclose any information that identifies, or serves in conjunction 

with other disclosed information, to identify any individual participating in Work, unless 

the individual so identified gives his/her prior written consent. 

2.13 Criminal Convictions. Sub recipient certifies that neither it nor any officer, director, 

partner or other managerial agent of Sub recipient has been convicted of a felony under 

the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, nor a Class 3 or Class 2 felony under Illinois Securities 

Law of 1953, or that at least five (5) years have passed since the date of the conviction. 

Sub recipient further certifies that it is not barred from receiving a contract under 30 ILCS 

500/50-10.5, and acknowledges that Winnebago County shall declare the Agreement void 

if this certification is false (30 ILCS 500/50-10.5). 

2.14 Forced Labor Act. Sub recipient certifies that it complies with the State Prohibition of 

Goods from Forced Labor Act, and certifies that no foreign-made equipment, materials, 

or supplies furnished to the State under this Agreement have been or will be produced in 

whole or in part by forced labor, convict labor, or indentured labor under penal sanction 

(30 ILCS 583). 

2.15 Illinois Use Tax. Sub recipient certifies in accordance with 30 ILCS 500/50-12 that it is 

not barred from receiving a contract under this Paragraph. Sub recipient acknowledges 

that this Agreement may be declared void if this certification is false. 

2.16 Environmental Protection Act Violations. Sub recipient certifies in accordance with 30 

ILCS 500/50-14 that it is not barred from receiving a contract under this Paragraph. Sub 

recipient acknowledges that this Agreement may be declared void if this certification is 

false. 

2.17 Goods from Child Labor Act. Sub recipient certifies that no foreign-made equipment, 

materials, or supplies furnished under this Agreement have been produced in whole or in 

part by the labor of any child under the age of twelve (12) (30 ILCS 584). 

Page 19 of 46



3. Criminal Disclosure

3.1.  Mandatory Criminal Disclosures. Sub recipient shall continue to disclose to Winnebago

County all violations of criminal law Involving fraud, bribery or gratuity violations 

potentially affecting this Agreement. See 30 ILCS 708/40. Additionally, if Sub recipient 

receives over $10 million in total Financial Assistance, funded by either State or Federal 

funds, during the period of this Agreement, Sub recipient must maintain the currency of 

information reported to SAM regarding civil, criminal or administrative proceedings as 

required by 2 CFR 200.113 and Appendix XII of 2 CFR Part 200, and 30 ILCS 708/40. 

4. Unlawful Discrimination

4.1 Compliance with Nondiscrimination Laws. Sub recipient, its employees and Sub

recipients under subcontract made pursuant to this Agreement, shall comply with all 

applicable provisions of State and Federal laws and regulations pertaining to 

nondiscrimination, sexual harassment, and equal employment opportunity including, but 

not limited to, the following laws and regulations and all subsequent amendments thereto: 

a) The Illinois Human Rights Act (775 ILCS 5/1-101 et seq.), including, without

limitation, 44 Ill. Admin. Code Part 750, which is incorporated herein;

b) The Public Works Employment Discrimination Act (775 ILCS 10/1 et seq.);

c) The United States Civil Rights Act of 1964 (as amended) (42 USC 2000a- and 2000h-

6). (See also guidelines to Federal Financial Assistance Recipients Regarding Title VI

Prohibition Against National Origin Discrimination Affecting Limited English

Proficient Persons [Federal Register: February 18, 2002 (Volume 67, Number 13,

Pages 2671-2685)]);

d) Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 USC 794);

e) The Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (as amended) (42 USC 12101 et seq.);

and

f) The Age Discrimination Act (42 USC 6101 et seq.).

5. Lobbying

5.1 Improper Influence. Sub recipient certifies that no grant funds have been paid or will be

paid by or on behalf of Sub recipient to any person for influencing or attempting to 

influence an officer or employee of any government agency, a member of Congress or 

Illinois General Assembly, an officer or employee of Congress or Illinois General 

Assembly, or an employee of a member of Congress or Illinois General Assembly in 

connection with the awarding of any agreement, the making of any grant, the making of 

any loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, or the extension, continuation, 

renewal, amendment or modification of any agreement, grant, loan or cooperative 

agreement. 31 USC 1352. Additionally, Sub recipient certifies that it has filed the 

Page 20 of 46



 

 

required certification under the Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment (31 USC 1352), if 

applicable. 

5.2 Federal Form LLL. If any funds, other than Federally-appropriated funds, were paid or 

will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence any of the above 

persons in connection with this Agreement, the undersigned must also complete and 

submit Federal Form LLL, Disclosure of Lobbying Activities Form, in accordance with 

its instructions. 

5.3 Lobbying Costs. Sub recipient certifies that it is in compliance with the restrictions on 

lobbying set forth in 2 CFR Part 200.450. For any Indirect Costs associated with this 

Agreement, total lobbying costs shall be separately identified in the Program Budget, and 

thereafter treated as other Unallowable Costs. 

5.4 Procurement Lobbying. Sub recipient warrants and certifies that it and, to the best of its 

knowledge, its Sub recipients have complied and will comply with Executive Order No. 

1 (2007) (EO 1-2007). EO 1-2007 generally prohibits grantees and Sub recipients from 

hiring the then-serving Governor’s family members to lobby procurement activities of 

the State, or any other unit of government in Illinois including local governments, if that 

procurement may result in a contract valued at over $25,000. This prohibition also applies 

to hiring for that same purpose any former State employee who had procurement authority 

at any time during the one-year period preceding the procurement lobbying activity.  

5.5 Certification. This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance 

was placed to enter into this transaction and is a prerequisite for this transaction, pursuant 

to 31 USC 1352. Any person who fails to file the required certifications shall be subject 

to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000, and not more than $100,000, for each such 

failure.  

6. Maintenance and Accessibility of Records; Monitoring 

6.1 Records Retention. Sub  recipient shall maintain for three (3) years from the date of 

submission of the final expenditure report under this Agreement, adequate books, all 

financial records and, supporting documents, statistical records, and all other records 

pertinent to this Agreement, adequate to comply with 2 CFR 200.333, unless a different 

retention period is specified in 2 CFR 200.333. If any litigation, claim or audit is started 

before the expiration of the retention period, the records must be retained until all 

litigation, claims, or audit exceptions involving the records have been resolved and final 

action taken. 

6.2 Accessibility of Records. Sub recipient shall make books, records, related papers, 

supporting documentation and personnel relevant to this Agreement available to 

authorized Awarding Agency representatives, the Illinois Auditor General, Illinois 

Attorney General, any Executive Inspector General, the Awarding Agency’s Inspector 

General, Federal authorities, any person identified in 2 CFR 200.336, and any other 

person as may be authorized by the Awarding Agency (including auditors), by the State 

Page 21 of 46



of Illinois, or by Federal statute. Sub recipient shall cooperate fully in any such audit or 

inquiry. 

6.3 Failure to Maintain Books and Records. Failure to maintain books, records and 

supporting documentation, as described herein, shall establish a presumption in favor of 

Winnebago County for the recovery of any funds paid by Winnebago County under this 

Agreement for which adequate books, records and supporting documentation are not 

available to support disbursement. 

6.4 Monitoring and Access to Information. Winnebago County must monitor its activities to 

assure compliance with applicable State and Federal requirements and to assure its 

performance expectations are being achieved under the terms of the grant award. In turn, 

Winnebago County shall monitor the activities of Sub recipient to assure compliance with 

all requirements and performance expectations of this Agreement. Sub recipient shall 

timely submit all invoices, and financial and performance reports requested by 

Winnebago County, and shall supply, upon Winnebago County’s request, documents and 

information relevant to this Agreement. Winnebago County may make site visits as 

warranted by program needs. 

6.5 Failure to Comply with Reporting or Documentation Requests. Sub recipient’s failure to 

comply with Winnebago County’s reporting requirements or supporting documentation 

requests may result in the withholding of funds and may be considered a material breach 

of this Agreement. 

7. Conflict of Interest.

7.1  Required Disclosures. Sub recipient must immediately disclose in writing any potential

or actual Conflict of Interest to Winnebago County. 

7.2 Prohibited Payments. Sub recipient agrees not to compensate, directly or indirectly, in 

connection with this Agreement any person: (a) currently holding an elective office in 

this State including, but not limited to, a seat in the General Assembly, or (2) employed 

by an office or agency of the State of Illinois whose annual compensation is in excess of 

sixty percent (60%) of the Governor’s annual salary (30 ILCS 500/50-13). 

8. Equipment or Property

8.1 Prohibition and Disposition/Encumbrance During Performance Period. Sub recipient is

prohibited from, and may not sell, transfer, encumber (other than original financing) or 

otherwise dispose of equipment, material, or real property during the Performance Period 

without prior approval of Winnebago County. 

8.2 Management and Disposition After Performance Period. Sub recipient must comply with 

the uniform standards set forth in 2 CFR 200.310–200.316 governing the management 

and disposition of property for which cost was supported by Grant Funds. 

8.3 Insurance. Grantee shall maintain in full force and effect during the Performance Period 

of this Agreement casualty and bodily injury insurance, as well as insurance sufficient to 

Page 22 of 46



 

 

cover the replacement cost of any and all real or personal property, or both, purchased or, 

otherwise acquired, or improved in whole or in part, with funds disbursed pursuant to this 

Agreement. 

8.4 Claims. If a claim is submitted for real or personal property, or both, purchased in whole 

with funds from this Agreement and such claim results in the recovery of money, such 

money recovered shall be surrendered to the County for return to the Awarding Agency. 

9. Promotional Materials; Prior Notification 

9.1   Publications, Announcements, etc. Use of Grant Funds for promotions is subject to the 

prohibitions for advertising or public relations costs in 2 CFR 200.421(e). In the event 

that Sub recipient seeks to use funds under this Agreement, in whole or in part, to produce 

any written publications, announcements, reports, flyers, brochures or other written 

materials, Sub recipient shall obtain prior approval for the use of funds for that purpose 

and, if approved by Winnebago County, agrees to include in these publications, 

announcements, reports, flyers, brochures and all other such material, the phrase “This 

project was supported by Grant No. O-BJA-2021-94005 awarded by the Bureau of 

Justice Assistance. The Bureau of Justice Assistance is a component of the Department 

of Justice’s Office of Justice Programs, which also includes the Bureau of Justice 

Statistics, the National Institute of Justice, the Office of Juvenile Justice and Delinquency 

Prevention, the Office for Victims of Crime, and the SMART Office. Points of view or 

opinions in this document are those of the author and do not necessarily represent the 

official position or policies of the U.S. Department of Justice.”  

9.2   Prior Notification/Release of Information. Sub recipient agrees to notify Winnebago 

County twelve (12) days prior to issuing public announcements or press releases 

concerning Work performed pursuant to this Agreement, or funded in whole or in part 

by this Agreement, and to cooperate with Winnebago County in joint or coordinated 

releases of information. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 23 of 46



EXHIBIT F
AWARD LETTER / SPECIAL CONDITIONS 

Page 24 of 46



Page 25 of 46



Page 26 of 46



Page 27 of 46



Page 28 of 46



Page 29 of 46



Page 30 of 46



Page 31 of 46



Page 32 of 46



Page 33 of 46



Page 34 of 46



Page 35 of 46



Page 36 of 46



Page 37 of 46



Page 38 of 46



Page 39 of 46



Page 40 of 46



Page 41 of 46



Page 42 of 46



Page 43 of 46



Page 44 of 46



Page 45 of 46



Page 46 of 46



 

UNFINISHED 
BUSINESS 



 

NEW BUSINESS 



 

ANNOUNCEMENTS & 
COMMUNICATIONS 



 

County Clerk  |  404 Elm St, Rm 104, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319-4250  |  Fax: (815) 969-0259  |  Email: CountyClerk@wincoil.us 

 

 
Announcements & Communications 
Date: May 25, 2023 
Item: Correspondence to the Board 
Prepared by: County Clerk Lori Gummow 
 

Governing Statute(s):  State of Illinois Counties Code 55 ILCS 5/Div. 3-2, Clerk 
 
County Code: Ch 2. Art. II. Div. 4, Sec. 2.86 – Record Keeping & Communications 
 
Background: The items listed below were received as correspondence.  
 

1. County Clerk Gummow received from the United States Nuclear Regulatory 
Commission the following: 
 
a. Byron Station – Integrated Inspection Report 05000454/2023001 and 

05000455/2023001 
 

b. Federal Register/Vol. 88, No. 94/Tuesday, May 16, 2023/Notices 
 

2. County Clerk Gummow received from Charter Communications a letter regarding the 
Quarterly Franchise Fee Payment for the Town of Roscoe, IL.  

http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:CountyClerk@wincoil.us
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs4.asp?DocName=005500050HDiv%2E+3-2&ActID=750&ChapterID=12&SeqStart=14400000&SeqEnd=16300000
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs4.asp?DocName=005500050HDiv%2E+3-2&ActID=750&ChapterID=12&SeqStart=14400000&SeqEnd=16300000
https://library.municode.com/il/winnebago_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COCO_CH2AD_ARTIICOBO_DIV4RUPR_S2-86RECO
https://library.municode.com/il/winnebago_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COCO_CH2AD_ARTIICOBO_DIV4RUPR_S2-86RECO


 

Adjournment 


	Agenda
	Awards, Presentations, Public Hearings & Public Participation
	Approval of Minutes
	Consent Agenda
	Appointments
	Reports of Standing Committees
	Finance Committee
	Resolution Authorizing Settlement of Claim Against Cty. of Winn. entitled David Seitz vs. Winn. Cty.
	Ordinance for Budget Amendment to Establish Sheriff E-Citation Fund
	Resolution to Expedite Payment of Claims for Winn. Cty.
	Zoning Committee
	Resolution Authorizing DC Estate Winery be Subject to Jurisdiction of City of South Beloit
	Resolution Directing ZBA to Conduct Public Hearing on Certain Unified Development Ord. Amendments
	Resolution Supporting Agriculture within Cty. of Winnebago, IL
	Resolution Authorizing  Chairman to Execute IGA for Bldg. Inspection by & between Cty. of Winn. & Village of CV
	Economic Development Committee
	Resolution Granting Authority to Execute Documents Necessary to Extend an Existing Loan from RLF to Experity
	Operations & Administrative Committee
	Resolution to Approve Addition of HVAC Control to Air Handlers & Replacing Thermostats for RBNH
	Public Works Committee
	(23-017) Resolution
	(23-018) Resolution
	(23-019) Resolution
	(23-020) Resolution
	(23-021) Resolution
	(23-022) Resolution
	Public Safety & Judiciary Committee
	Resolution Authorizing  Cty. Brd. Chairman to Amend Contract for Telecommunication Services
	Resolution Authorizing Execution of First Amendment to ARP Subrecipient Agreement
	Resolution to Extend Project Safe Neighborhoods Agreement
	Unfinished Business
	New Business
	Announcements & Communications
	Adjournment



